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ANNUAL REPORT
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EXPLANATORY NOTE
This annual report is being provided to the Trustee and any record Holder of the notes under Section 4.03 of the Indenture
governing the Senior Notes Due 2018 of Jazz US Holdings Inc. Because the Securities and Exchange Commission does not
accept filings from voluntary filers such as Jazz US Holdings Inc. who have not previously filed a registration statement
under either the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report will not be filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission. For the sake of convenience and comparison with reports from prior periods, the information in
this report is presented using the item numbers and other presentation styles of an Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
Some of the information contained or incorporated by reference in this annual report constitutes forward-looking
statements within the definition of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. You can identify these statements by
forward-looking words such as “may,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “contemplate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “intends,” and
“continue” or similar words. You should read statements that contain these words carefully because they:


discuss future expectations;



contain projections of future results of operations or financial condition; or

 state other “forward-looking” information.
We believe it is important to communicate our expectations to our shareholders. However, there may be events in
the future that we are not able to predict accurately or over which we have no control. The risk factors and cautionary
language discussed or incorporated by reference in this annual report provide examples of risks, uncertainties and events that
may cause actual results to differ materially from the expectations described by us in such forward-looking statements,
including among other things:


outcomes of government reviews, inquiries, investigations and related litigation;



continued compliance with government regulations;



legislation or regulatory environments, requirements or changes adversely affecting the business in which we
are engaged;



fluctuations in customer demand;



management of rapid growth; and

 general economic conditions.
You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date
of this annual report.
All forward-looking statements included or incorporated herein attributable to us or any person acting on our behalf
are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements contained or referred to in this section. Except to the
extent required by applicable laws and regulations, we undertake no obligation to update these forward-looking statements to
reflect events or circumstances after the date of this annual report or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.
You should be aware that the occurrence of the events described in the “Risk Factors” portion of this annual report,
the documents incorporated herein and our other SEC filings could have a material adverse effect on our business, prospects,
financial condition and operating results.
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Part I
Item 1. Business
Overview
Jazz US Holdings Inc., through its wholly owned subsidiaries, is an independent pure-play semiconductor foundry
focused on specialty process technologies for the manufacture of analog and mixed-signal semiconductor devices. Typically,
pure-play foundries do not offer products of their own, but focus on producing integrated circuits, or ICs, based on the design
specifications of their customers. We manufacture semiconductors for our customers primarily based on third party designs
and our process technology and engineering support. We also provide design support and complementary technical services.
ICs manufactured by us are incorporated into a wide range of products in diverse markets, including cellular phones, wireless
local area networking devices, digital TVs, set-top boxes, gaming devices, switches, routers and broadband modems.
Organization
In 2008 Tower Semiconductor Ltd. (“Tower”) acquired all the shares of Jazz Technologies, Inc., the holder of all the
shares of Jazz Semiconductor, Inc. As part of a corporate reorganization in November 2015, Jazz Technologies Inc. changed
its name to Tower US Holdings Inc. and transferred all of its assets and liabilities, including its ownership of all of the shares
of Jazz Semiconductor Inc., to Jazz US Holdings Inc., a newly established company incorporated under the laws of Delaware
and wholly owned by Tower US Holdings Inc. which is wholly owned by Tower. The transaction had the effect of
establishing Jazz US Holdings as an intermediate holding company holding all of the shares of Jazz Semiconductor Inc.
Because the November 2015 reorganization involved companies under common control, the financial statements of
Jazz US Holdings Inc. and subsidiaries are presented in this Annual Report as if the November 2015 reorganization had
occurred on the first day of earliest year presented.
As used in this annual report, “we,” “us,” “our,” “Jazz,” the “Company” and words of similar import refer to Jazz
Technologies Inc., including its subsidiaries, for the period preceding November 23, 2015, and Jazz US Holdings Inc.,
including its subsidiaries following such date. “Jazz Semiconductor” refers solely to Jazz Semiconductor, Inc.
Because the Securities and Exchange Commission does not accept filings from voluntary filers such as Jazz US
Holdings Inc. who have not previously filed a registration statement under either the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, this annual report and future quarterly and annual reports of financial information by the Company
will not be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, but will be provided directly to the Trustee and any record
Holder of the notes in accordance with Section 4.03 of the Indenture governing the Senior Notes Due 2018 and will also be
available on the TowerJazz website at www.towerjazz.com under the “Financial Statements” tab, which is under the
“Investors” tab. To view the historical SEC filings by the Company on the SEC’s EDGAR website, go to www.sec.gov, and
search for filings made by Jazz Technologies, Inc.
Jazz’s Solution
Jazz is an independent semiconductor foundry, providing specialty process technologies, design solutions and
application knowledge for the manufacture of analog and mixed-signal semiconductors. Key elements of its solution are as
follows:


Jazz offers an independent and focused source for the manufacture of semiconductors using specialty
process technologies. Most other independent foundries focus on standard process technologies, rather than
specialty process technologies. Some vertically integrated semiconductor companies who internally design,
fabricate, package, test and market their own semiconductors, known as integrated device manufacturers, or
IDMs, offer specialty process foundry services but also manufacture their own semiconductor products, which
may be competitive with the products of their potential customers who seek these services. Jazz combines the
benefits of independence with a focus on specialty process technologies.



Jazz offers a specialized design platform for analog and mixed-signal semiconductors. Jazz’s design
engineering support team assists its customers with their advanced designs by leveraging Jazz’s application
knowledge and experience to help guide their technology selection and design implementation. Jazz’s
sophisticated design tools and services are specifically tailored to meet analog and mixed-signal design needs,
and include specialized device modeling and characterization features that allow simulation of a variety of real
world situations, including different temperatures, power levels and speeds.



Jazz offers a broad range of specialty process technologies. Jazz’s specialty process technology portfolio
includes advanced analog CMOS, RF CMOS, RF SOI, high voltage CMOS, BiCMOS and SiGe BiCMOS

processes. The breadth of Jazz’s portfolio allows it to offer its customers a wide range of solutions to address
their high-performance, high-density, low-power and low-noise requirements for analog and mixed-signal
semiconductors.


Jazz is a leader in high-performance SiGe process technologies. Jazz offers high performance 240 GHz 0.18
micron SiGe BiCMOS technology, which Jazz believes is one of the most advanced SiGe process technologies
in production today. Analog and mixed-signal semiconductors manufactured with SiGe BiCMOS process
technologies can be smaller, require less power and provide higher performance than those manufactured with
standard CMOS processes. Moreover, SiGe BiCMOS process technologies allow for higher levels of
integration of analog and digital functions on the same mixed-signal semiconductor device.

Jazz’s Strategy
Key elements of Jazz’s strategy are as follows:


Further strengthen Jazz’s position in specialty process technologies for the manufacture of analog and
mixed-signal semiconductors. Jazz is continuing to invest in its portfolio of specialty process technologies to
address the key product attributes that make its customers’ products more competitive.



Target large, growing and diversified end markets. Jazz targets end markets characterized by high growth and
high performance for which it believes its specialty process technologies have a high value proposition,
including the wireless and high-speed wireline communications, consumer electronics, automotive and
industrial markets. For example, Jazz believes that its specialty process technologies can provide performance
and cost advantages over current GaAs and CMOS solutions in the realization of switches and power amplifiers
for wireless handsets.



Continue to diversify Jazz’s customer base. Jazz intends to continue to grow and diversify its business by
attracting new customers and expanding its customer base.



Maintain capital efficiency by leveraging its capacity and manufacturing model. Jazz seeks to maximize the
utilization of its Newport Beach, California manufacturing facility to maintain cost-effective manufacturing.
Jazz can increase its specialty process technology capacity and meet its customer performance requirements
using adapted semiconductor process equipment sets that are typically one or two generations behind leadingedge digital CMOS process equipment. This allows Jazz to acquire lower-cost semiconductor process
equipment to operate its Newport Beach, California fab.

Jazz’s Specialty Process Technologies
Jazz refers to its advanced analog CMOS, RF CMOS, RF SOI, high voltage CMOS, BiCMOS, SiGe BiCMOS and
BCD process technologies, as specialty process technologies. Most of Jazz’s specialty process technologies are based on
CMOS processes with added features to enable improved size, performance and cost characteristics for analog and mixedsignal semiconductors. Products made with Jazz’s specialty process technologies are typically more complex to manufacture
than products made using standard process technologies employing similar line widths. Generally, customers who use Jazz’s
specialty process technologies cannot easily move designs to another foundry because the analog characteristics of the design
are dependent upon the specific process technology used for manufacturing. The relatively small engineering community
with specialty process know-how has also limited the number of foundries capable of offering specialty process technologies.
In addition, the specialty process design infrastructure is complex and includes design kits and device models that are specific
to the foundry in which the process is implemented and to the process technology itself.
Jazz’s advanced analog CMOS process technologies have more features than standard analog CMOS process
technologies and are well suited for higher performance or more highly integrated analog and mixed-signal semiconductors,
such as high-speed analog-to-digital or digital-to-analog converters and mixed-signal semiconductors with integrated data
converters. These process technologies generally incorporate higher density passive components, such as capacitors and
resistors, as well as improved active components, such as native or low voltage devices, and improved isolation techniques,
into standard analog CMOS process technologies. Jazz currently has advanced analog CMOS process technologies in 0.5
micron, 0.35 micron, 0.25 micron, 0.18 micron and 0.13 micron. These advanced analog CMOS processes form the baseline
for Jazz’s other specialty process technologies.
Jazz’s RF CMOS process technologies have more features than advanced analog CMOS process technologies and
are well suited for wireless semiconductors, such as highly integrated wireless transceivers, power amplifiers, and television
tuners. These process technologies generally incorporate integrated inductors, high performance variable capacitors, or
varactors, and RF laterally diffused metal oxide semiconductors into an advanced analog CMOS process technology. In
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addition to the process features, Jazz’s RF offering includes design kits with RF models, device simulation and physical
layouts tailored specifically for RF performance. Jazz currently has RF CMOS process technologies in 0.25 micron, 0.18
micron and 0.13 micron. These RF CMOS process technologies form the baseline for some of Jazz’s other specialty process
technologies.
Jazz’s RF SOI CMOS process technologies make available many of the features of Jazz’s RF CMOS process on
Silicon-on-Insulator (SOI) substrates. The devices on Jazz’s RF SOI CMOS process are further optimized to work with the
SOI substrate and deliver higher performance and improved isolation relative to the devices of Jazz’s RF CMOS process.
Jazz currently has RF SOI CMOS process technologies in the 0.18um and 0.13um lithography nodes.
Jazz’s high voltage CMOS and BCD process technologies have more features than advanced analog CMOS
processes and are well suited for power and driver semiconductors such as voltage regulators, battery chargers, power
management products and audio amplifiers. These process technologies generally incorporate higher voltage CMOS devices
such as 5V, 8V, 12V and 40V devices, and, in the case of BCD, bipolar devices, into an advanced analog CMOS process.
Jazz currently has high voltage CMOS or BCD offerings in 0.5 micron, 0.35 micron, 0.25 micron and 0.18 micron.
Jazz’s BiCMOS process technologies have more features than RF CMOS process technologies and are well suited
for RF semiconductors such as wireless transceivers and television tuners. These process technologies generally incorporate
high-speed bipolar transistors into an RF CMOS process. The equipment requirements for BiCMOS manufacturing are
specialized and require enhanced tool capabilities to achieve high yield manufacturing. Jazz currently has BiCMOS process
technologies in 0.35 micron.
Jazz’s SiGe BiCMOS process technologies have more features than BiCMOS processes and are well suited for more
advanced RF semiconductors such as high-speed, low noise, wireless transceivers, fiber-optic components, television tuners,
power amplifiers and low-noise amplifiers. These process technologies generally incorporate a silicon germanium bipolar
transistor, which is formed by the deposition of a thin layer of silicon germanium within a bipolar transistor. It is also
possible to achieve higher speeds using SiGe BiCMOS process technologies equivalent to those demonstrated in standard
CMOS processes that are two process generations smaller in line-width. For example, a 0.18 micron SiGe BiCMOS process
is able to achieve speeds comparable to a 90 nanometer RF CMOS process. As a result, SiGe BiCMOS makes it possible to
create analog products using a larger geometry process technology at a lower cost while achieving similar or superior
performance to that achieved using a smaller geometry standard CMOS process technology. The equipment requirements for
SiGe BiCMOS manufacturing are similar to the specialized equipment requirements for BiCMOS. We have developed
enhanced tool capabilities in conjunction with large semiconductor tool suppliers to achieve high yield SiGe manufacturing.
Jazz believes this equipment and related process expertise makes Jazz one of the few silicon manufacturers with
demonstrated ability to deliver SiGe BiCMOS products. Jazz currently has SiGe BiCMOS process technologies at 0.35
micron and 0.18 micron and 0.13 micron SiGe BiCMOS process.
Jazz also has technologies that integrate micro-electro-mechanical-system (MEMS) devices with CMOS.
Jazz continues to invest in technology that helps improve the performance and integration level and reduce the cost
of analog and mixed-signal products. This includes improving the density of passive elements such as capacitors and
inductors, improving the analog performance and voltage handling capability of active devices, and integrating advanced
features in Jazz’s specialty CMOS processes that are currently not readily available.
Manufacturing
We have placed significant emphasis on achieving and maintaining a high standard of manufacturing quality. Jazz
seeks to enhance its production capacity for its high-demand specialty process technologies and to design and implement
manufacturing processes that produce consistently at high manufacturing yields. Jazz’s production capacity in each of its
specialty process technologies enables Jazz to provide its customers with volume production, flexibility and quick-to-market
manufacturing services. Jazz’s process research and development is performed in its manufacturing facility in Newport
Beach, California and in Tower’s design center in Netanya, Israel.
General
Jazz currently has the capability in its Newport Beach, California fab to manufacture standard CMOS as well as
specialty eight-inch wafers. We have the ability to rapidly change the mix of production processes in use in order to respond
to changing customer needs and maximize utilization of the fab.
Raw Materials
Jazz’s manufacturing processes use highly specialized materials, including semiconductor wafers, chemicals, gases
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and photomasks. These raw materials are generally available from several suppliers. However, Jazz often selects one vendor
to provide it with a particular type of material in order to obtain preferred pricing. In those cases, Jazz generally also seeks to
identify, and in some cases qualify, alternative sources of supply.
We have agreements with several key material suppliers under which they hold certain levels of inventory at Jazz’s
warehouse and fab. Jazz is not under any obligation under these agreements to purchase raw material inventory that is held by
its vendors at its site until Jazz actually uses it, unless Jazz holds the inventory beyond specified time limits.
Jazz’s Services
Jazz primarily manufactures semiconductor wafers for its customers.
Generally, the processes required to manufacture semiconductor devices from raw silicon wafers include mask
making, wafer fabrication, probe, assembly and test. Jazz offers manufacturing services and related technical, engineering
and other support services. Assembly and test are generally performed independently by our customers through third parties.
Sales Contracts
A few of Jazz’s major customers purchase services and products from us by contract. Most other customers
purchase from Jazz using purchase orders. Jazz prices its products for these customers on a per wafer or per die basis, taking
into account the complexity of the technology, the prevailing market conditions, volume forecasts, the strength and history of
its relationship with the customer and its current capacity utilization.
Most of our customers usually place their orders only two to four months before shipment; however a few of our
major customers are obligated to provide Jazz with longer forecasts of their wafer needs and/or certain purchase
commitments.
Jazz Semiconductor Trusted Foundry (JSTF)
In connection with the Company's aerospace and defense business, its facility security clearance and trusted foundry
status, the Company created a wholly owned subsidiary named Jazz Semiconductor Trusted Foundry ("JSTF") in 2013 and
has limited the possession of all classified information solely to JSTF. To mitigate any concern of foreign ownership, control
or influence over the operations of Jazz specifically relating to protection of classified information and prevention of potential
unauthorized access thereto, Tower and Jazz have further agreed to operate JSTF under a special security agreement signed
with the Defense Security Service (“DSS”). JSTF has been certified by the Defense Microelectronics Activity (“DMEA”) for
participation in the Department of Defense’s accredited supplier program and has obtained a facility security clearance from
DSS and accreditation by DMEA as a Category 1A and 1B accredited supplier.
Customers, Markets and Applications
Jazz’s customers use Jazz’s processes to design and market a broad range of digital, analog and mixed-signal
semiconductors for diverse end markets including wireless and high-speed wireline communications, consumer electronics,
automotive and industrial. Jazz manufactures products that are used for high-performance applications such as transceivers,
switches, and power management for cellular phones; transceivers and power amplifiers for wireless local area networking
products; power management, audio amplifiers and driver integrated circuits for consumer electronics; tuners for digital
televisions and set-top boxes; modem chipsets for broadband access devices and gaming devices; serializer/deserializers,
clock-data-recovery, trans-impedance amplifiers, and laser drivers for fiber optic transceivers; focal plane arrays for imaging
applications; and wireline interfaces for switches and routers.
Order Backlog
All of Jazz’s orders are subject to possible rescheduling by its customers. Rescheduling may relate to quantities or
delivery dates, and sometimes relates to the specifications of the products it is shipping. Most customers do business with
Jazz on a purchase order basis, and some of these orders may be cancelled by the customer without penalty. Jazz also may
elect to permit cancellation of orders without penalty where management believes it is in its best interest to do so.
Consequently, Jazz cannot be certain that orders on backlog will be shipped when expected or at all. For these reasons, as
well as the cyclical nature of its industry, Jazz believes that its backlog at any given date may not be a reliable indicator of its
future revenues.
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Competition
Jazz competes internationally and domestically with dedicated foundry service providers such as Taiwan
Semiconductor Manufacturing Company (TSMC), United Microelectronics Corporation, Semiconductor Manufacturing
International Corporation and Global Foundries (GF), which, in addition to providing leading edge CMOS process
technologies, also have capacity for some specialty process technologies. Jazz also competes with integrated device
manufacturers, such as ST, that have internal semiconductor manufacturing capacity or foundry operations. In addition,
several dedicated foundries have advanced operations such as X-Fab, Dong Bu and Vanguard and directly compete with
Jazz in certain areas, flows and technology capabilities.
Prior to Jazz’s separation from Conexant, Conexant entered into a long-term licensing agreement with TSMC under
which TSMC licensed from Conexant the right to manufacture semiconductors using Conexant’s then existing 0.18 micron
or greater SiGe BiCMOS process technologies. TSMC publicly announced in 2001 that it planned to use the licensed
technology to accelerate its own foundry processes for the networking and wireless communications markets. Since Jazz’s
formation, we have continued to make improvements to our SiGe BiCMOS process technology. We have not licensed any of
these improvements to TSMC.
As Jazz’s competitors continue to increase their manufacturing capacity, there could be an increase in specialty
semiconductor capacity during the next several years. As specialty capacity increases, there may be more competition and
pricing pressure on Jazz’s services, and underutilization of its capacity may result. Any significant increase in competition or
pricing pressure may erode its profit margins, weaken Jazz’s earnings or increase its losses.
Additionally, some semiconductor companies have advanced their CMOS designs to 22 nanometers or smaller
geometries. These smaller geometries may provide the customer with performance and integration features that may be
comparable to, or exceed, features offered by Jazz’s specialty process technologies. In addition, they may be more costeffective at higher production volumes for certain applications, such as when a large amount of digital content is required in a
mixed-signal semiconductor and less analog content is required. Jazz’s specialty process technologies will therefore compete
with these advanced CMOS processes for customers and some of its potential and existing customers could elect to design
their next generation products using these advanced CMOS processes. Jazz is not currently capable, and does not currently
plan to become capable, of providing CMOS processes at these smaller geometries. If Jazz’s existing customers or new
customers choose to design their products using these advanced CMOS processes, Jazz’s business may suffer.
The principal elements of competition in the semiconductor wafer foundry market include:


technical competency;



production speed and cycle time;



time-to-market;



research and development capabilities;



technology offering, available geometries and wafer size;



available capacity;



quality of manufacturing process and products manufactured;



access to intellectual property;



manufacturing yields;



design and customer support services;



price;



management expertise;



strategic relationships; and



stability and reliability of supply in order to be a dependable supplier.

There can be no assurance that Jazz will be able to compete effectively on the basis of all or any of these elements.
Jazz’s ability to compete successfully may depend to some extent on factors outside of its control, including industry and
general economic trends, import and export controls, exchange controls, exchange rate fluctuations, interest rate fluctuations
and political developments. If Jazz cannot compete successfully in its industry, its business and results of operations may be
harmed.
Research and Development
5

The semiconductor industry is characterized by rapid changes in technology. As a result, effective research and
development is essential to Jazz’s success. Jazz plans to continue to invest significantly in research and development
activities to develop advanced process technologies for new applications.
Jazz’s research and development activities seek to upgrade and integrate manufacturing technologies and processes.
Jazz maintains a central research and development team primarily responsible for developing cost-effective technologies that
can serve the manufacturing needs of its customers. A substantial portion of Jazz’s research and development activities are
undertaken in cooperation with its customers and equipment vendors.
Intellectual Property
Jazz’s success depends in part on its ability to obtain patents, licenses and other intellectual property rights covering
and relating to wafer manufacturing and production processes, semiconductor structures and other structures fabricated on
wafers. To that end, we have acquired certain patents and patent licenses and intend to continue to seek patents. As of
December 31, 2015, Jazz had 174 patents in force.
Jazz Semiconductor entered into a technology license agreement that grants it worldwide perpetual license rights
from PolarFab regarding certain process technologies that may be incorporated into its BCD process technologies for the
manufacture of wafers by Jazz for its customers and customers of PolarFab. Jazz also entered into an associated technology
transfer agreement for such processes. Jazz is able to adapt, prepare derivatives based on, or otherwise exploit the licensed
technology; however, Jazz is restricted from using certain licensed BCD process technologies with respect to motor
controllers for hard disk drives. Jazz is also permitted to sublicense these process technologies to any of its future
manufacturing suppliers to manufacture wafers using these process technologies for Jazz and its customers.
Jazz may choose to obtain additional patent licenses or enter into additional patent cross-licenses in the future.
However, there can be no assurance as to whether future agreements will be reached or as to the terms of any agreement that
is consummated.
In connection with Jazz Semiconductor’s separation from Conexant, Conexant contributed to Jazz Semiconductor a
substantial portion of its intellectual property, including software licenses, patents and intellectual property rights in knowhow related to its business. Jazz Semiconductor agreed to license back to Conexant and its affiliates intellectual property
rights relating to the intellectual property contributed to Jazz Semiconductor by Conexant. Conexant may use this license to
have Conexant products produced by third-party manufacturers and to sell such products, but must obtain Jazz
Semiconductor’s prior consent to sublicense these rights.
Jazz’s ability to compete depends on its ability to operate without infringing the proprietary rights of others. The
semiconductor industry is generally characterized by frequent litigation regarding patent and other intellectual property
rights. As is the case with many companies in the semiconductor industry, we have from time to time received
communications from third parties asserting that their patents cover certain of Jazz’s technologies or alleging infringement of
their intellectual property rights. Jazz expects that it will receive similar communications in the future. Irrespective of the
validity or the successful assertion of such claims, Jazz could incur significant costs and devote significant management
resources to the defense of these claims, which could seriously harm the Company.
Environmental Matters
Semiconductor manufacturing processes generate solid, gaseous, liquid and other industrial wastes in various stages
of the manufacturing process. We have installed various types of pollution control equipment in our fab to reduce, treat and,
where feasible, recycle the wastes generated from our manufacturing process. Jazz’s operations are subject to strict regulation
and periodic monitoring by the United States Environmental Protection Agency along with several state and local
environmental agencies.
We have implemented an environmental management system that assists Jazz in identifying applicable
environmental regulations, evaluating compliance status and establishing timely waste preventive measures. We have also
obtained certification for implementing the standard requirements of ISO 14001:2004. ISO 14001 consists of a set of
standards that provide guidance on achieving an effective environmental management system.
Jazz has adopted measures to minimize pollution for the effective maintenance of environmental protection
standards substantially consistent with U.S. federal, state and local environmental regulations. Jazz is in material compliance
with applicable environmental laws and regulations.
Risk Management and Insurance
As part of its risk management program, Jazz surveyed its buildings and fab for resistance to potential earthquake
6

damage. As a result of this survey, Jazz implemented additional measures to minimize its fab’s exposure to potential damage
caused by future earthquakes and seismically qualified its fab for high magnitude earthquakes.
Jazz maintains industrial special risk insurance for its facility, equipment and inventories that covers physical
damage and consequential losses from natural disasters and certain other risks up to the policy limits and except for
exclusions as defined in the policies. Jazz also maintains public liability insurance for losses to others arising from its
business operations and insurance for business interruption resulting from such events, including cases in which its suppliers
are unable to provide Jazz with supplies. While Jazz believes that its insurance coverage is adequate and consistent with
industry practice, significant damage to any of its or its manufacturing suppliers’ production facilities, whether as a result of
fire or other causes, could seriously harm its business and results of operations.
Properties
Our headquarters and manufacturing facility are located in Newport Beach, California. The Company leases its
fabrication facility and offices under lease contracts that the Company can extend until 2027. In 2015, the Company
exercised its option to extend the lease term from 2017 to 2022, while maintaining the option to extend the lease term at its
sole discretion from 2022 to 2027. Under our amended leases, the Company’s rental payments consist of fixed base rent and
fixed management fees and our pro rata share of certain expenses incurred by the landlord in the ownership of these
buildings, including property taxes, building insurance and common area maintenance. These lease expenses are included in
operating expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
The Company and the landlord further amended the lease to setting forth certain obligations of the Company and the
landlord, including certain noise abatement actions at the fabrication facility.
Item 1A. Risk Factors
Our operating results may fluctuate from quarter to quarter which makes it difficult to predict our future
performance and such fluctuations may ultimately negatively affect our financial position.
Our revenues, expenses and operating results have varied significantly in the past and may fluctuate significantly
from quarter to quarter in the future due to a number of factors, a portion of which are beyond our control. These factors
include, among others:


The cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry and the volatility of the markets served by our customers;



Changes in the economic conditions of geographical regions where our customers and their markets are located;



Shifts by integrated device manufacturers and customers between internal and outsourced production;



Inventory and supply chain management of our customers;



The loss of a key customer, postponement of an order from a key customer or the rescheduling or cancellation
of large orders;



The occurrence of accounts receivable write-offs, failure of a key customer to pay accounts receivable in a
timely manner or the financial condition of our customers;



The occurrence of an unexpected event, such as environmental events or industrial accidents such as fire or
explosions, electricity outage or misprocess, affecting the manufacturing process and our ability to recover the
lost or damaged products and provide quality and timely production to our customers without charging them
significant additional costs;



Completing capacity expansion and recruitment of personnel in a timely manner to address product demands by
our customers;



Mergers and acquisitions in the semiconductor industry and its effect on our market share;



Our ability to satisfy our customers’ demand for quality and timely production;
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The timing and volume of orders relative to our available production capacity;



Our ability to obtain raw materials and equipment on a timely and cost-effective basis;



Price erosion in the industry and our ability to negotiate prices with our current customers and new customers;



Our susceptibility to intellectual property rights’ disputes;



Our dependency on export licenses and other permits required for our operations and the sale of our products;



Our ability to maintain existing partners and to enter into new partnerships and technology and supply alliances
on mutually beneficial terms;



Interest, price index and currency rate fluctuations that were not hedged;



Technological changes and short product life cycles;



Timing for the design and the qualification of new products;



The possibility that integrated device manufacturers continue to design and manufacture integrated circuits in
their own fabrication facilities or that in certain periods or under certain circumstances such as low demand,
they will choose to manufacture their products in their facilities instead of manufacturing products at external
foundries; and



Changes in accounting rules and new accounting rules affecting our results.

Due to the factors noted above and other risks discussed in this section, a portion of which are beyond our control, it
may be difficult to predict our future performance and any such fluctuations may ultimately negatively affect our operating
results and our financial position.
Over-demand for our foundry services and/or products may result in a loss of customers, which may adversely
affect our profitability and business.
In periods during which demand for our foundry services exceeds our capacity and manufacturing capabilities, we
may be (i) unable to fulfill customer demand in whole or in part, in a timely manner or at all; (ii) incapable to assure
production of customers’ next generation of products; and/ or (iii) unable to provide additional capacity from any of Tower’s
fabs in Israel, US and/or Japan through transfer of process technologies, successful implementation and timely qualification.
As a result, we could lose one or more of our current or potential customers, which may adversely affect our revenues,
profitability and business.
The production line of our manufacturing facility may stop for short or long periods of time due to high
utilization, bottlenecks, power outages, water leaks, chemical leaks or other issues, which may adversely affect
our cycle time, yield, and on schedule delivery. In addition, affected customers may elect to transfer their product
orders to other fabs, thereby potentially causing an immediate loss of a potentially material amount of revenues
for the applicable period, which would adversely affect our revenue, profitability and financial position.
There are many events that may occur which may adversely affect the manufacturing process running in a facility.
From time to time, we experience high utilization rates, which may cause bottlenecks in the lines and/or specific areas and/or
specific machines, power outages, water leaks, chemical leaks or other issues that may adversely affect our cycle time, yield
and on schedule delivery. We try to mitigate any potential damage caused by such events and have insurance coverage,
which we believe to be sufficient. However, we cannot ensure that such events will not have a negative effect on the
Company, such as late deliveries, which may cause customers to elect to transfer their product orders to other fabs, thereby
potentially causing an immediate loss of a material amount of revenues for the applicable period, which may adversely affect
our profitability and financial position.
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A global recession, unfavorable economic conditions and/or credit crisis may adversely affect our results and our
ability to fulfill our debt obligations and other liabilities.
The effects of a downturn or a weakness in the semiconductor industry and/or in the global economy may include
global decreased demand, downward price pressure, excess inventory and unutilized capacity worldwide, which may
negatively impact consumer and customer demand for the Company’s products and the end products of the Company’s
customers. Such a downturn or a weakness may adversely affect the Company’s customer base and/or customers’ products
base by adversely affecting the Company’s ability to attract new customers and new business to its fab. Such a downturn or
weakness may also adversely affect the Company’s ability to increase the utilization rates in its manufacturing facility and
maintain it at a high level that would suffice to cover its substantial fixed costs, maintain commercial relationships with its
customers, suppliers, and creditors, including its lenders, continue its capacity growth. In addition, such a downturn or
weakness may negatively impact the Company’s ability to improve the Company’s future financial results and position,
including its ability to raise funds in the capital markets, fulfill its debt obligations and other liabilities, refinance its debt and
other liabilities and/or pay them in a timely manner, comprised mainly of debentures and the bank credit line. There is no
assurance that such downturn will not occur.
If we are unable to manage fluctuations in cash flow, our business and financial position may be adversely
affected.
Our working capital requirements and cash flows are subject to quarterly and yearly fluctuations, depending on a
number of factors. If we are unable to manage fluctuations in cash flow, our business, operating results and financial
condition may be materially adversely affected. Factors which could lead us to suffer cash flow fluctuations include:


fluctuations in the level of revenues from our operating activities;



fluctuations in the collection of receivables;



the timing and size of payables;



the timing and size of capital expenditures; and



the repayment schedules of our debt service obligations.

Our financial position and operations may be affected as a result of our debt and other liabilities.
Our debt par value as of December 31, 2015 was approximately $77 million, comprised of $58 million par
value of convertible notes due December 2018 (the “2014 Notes”) and $19 million borrowing under the Wells Fargo line
of credit which matures in December 2018. Said debt could have significant negative consequences, including:


requiring the use of a substantial portion of our cash flow from operating activities to service our
indebtedness rather than investing our cash flows to fund our growth plans, working capital and capital
expenditures;



increasing our vulnerability to adverse economic and industry conditions;



limiting our ability to obtain additional financing;



limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the industry in which we
compete;



placing us at a competitive disadvantage with respect to less leveraged competitors and competitors that have
better access to capital resources;



enforcement by the lenders under the Wells Fargo line of credit of their liens against our assets at the
occurrence of an event of default; and/or



limiting our ability to fulfill our debt obligations and other liabilities.

In order to service our debt and other liabilities and obligations and/or improve its terms and conditions, in addition
to our cash on hand and expected cash flow generation from operating activities, we may continue to explore measures to
obtain funds from additional sources including debt and/or refinancing, sale of new securities, sale of intellectual property
and/or intellectual property licensing, as well as additional financing alternatives. However, there is no assurance that we will
be able to obtain sufficient funding, if at all, from the financing sources detailed above or other sources in a timely manner
(or on commercially reasonable terms) in order to allow us to fund our growth plans and/or cover, in a timely manner, all our
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costs, capital expenditure investments and all of our scheduled debt, liabilities and obligations, which may adversely affect
our financial position and operations.
The lack of a significant backlog resulting from our customers not placing purchase orders far in advance makes
it difficult for us to forecast our revenues in future periods.
Our customers generally do not place purchase orders far in advance, partly due to the cyclical nature of the
semiconductor industry. As a result, we do not typically operate with any significant backlog. The lack of a significant
backlog makes it difficult for us to forecast our revenues in future periods. Moreover, since our expense levels are based in
part on our expectations of future revenues, we may be unable to adjust costs in a timely manner to compensate for revenue
shortfalls. We expect that in the future our revenues in any quarter will continue to be substantially dependent upon purchase
orders received in that quarter and in the immediately preceding quarter. We cannot assure you that any of our customers will
continue to place orders with us in the future at the same levels as in prior periods. If orders received from our customers
differ adversely from the number of wafers forecasted to be ordered, our operating results may be adversely affected.
We may manufacture wafers based on forecasted demand, rather than actual orders from customers. If our
forecasted demand exceeds actual demand, we may have obsolete inventory, which may have a negative impact
on our financial results.
We target manufacturing wafers in an amount matching each customer’s specific purchase order. On occasion, we
may produce wafers in excess of a customer’s orders based on forecasted customer demand, because we may forecast future
excess demand or because of future capacity constraints. If we manufacture more wafers than are actually ordered by
customers, we may be left with excess inventory that may ultimately become obsolete and must be scrapped or sold at a
significant discount. Significant amounts of obsolete inventory may have a negative impact on our financial results.
Our financial results may be adversely affected if we are unable to operate our facility at utilization rates that are
high enough to maintain revenue levels that would cover our costs.
As is common in our industry, a large portion of our total costs is comprised of fixed costs, associated mainly with
our manufacturing facility, while our variable costs are relatively small. Therefore, during periods when our facility
manufactures at high utilization rates, we are able to cover our costs. However, at times when the utilization rate is low, the
reduced revenues may not cover all of the costs since a large portion of them are fixed costs and remain constant, irrespective
of the fact that fewer wafers were manufactured. In addition, our depreciation costs and capital expenditure investments, as
common in our industry, are high. If customer demand for our products is not sufficient to enable us to operate our facility
consistently at high utilization rates, we may not be able to fully cover all of our costs, debt and other liabilities which would
affect our financial results.
Our sales cycles are typically long and orders received may not meet our expectations, which may adversely affect
our operating results.
Our sales cycles, which we measure from first contact with a customer to first shipment of a product ordered by the
customer, vary substantially and may last as long as two years or more, particularly for new technologies. In addition, even
after we make initial shipments of prototype products, it may take several more months to reach full production of the
product. As a result of these long sales cycles, we may be required to invest substantial time and incur significant expenses in
advance of the receipt of any product order and related revenue. If orders ultimately received are significantly lower than our
expectations, we will have excess capacity that we may not be able to fill within a short period of time, resulting in lower
utilization of our facility. This may adversely affect our operating results and financial condition considering that in addition
to the revenues loss, we may be unable to adjust our costs in a timely manner to align with the lower revenue, since a large
portion of our cost is fixed cost which remains constant irrespective of the number of wafers actually manufactured.
Demand for our foundry services is dependent on the demand in our customers’ end markets. A material
decrease in demand for products that contain semiconductors may decrease the demand for our services and
products and a decrease in the selling prices of our customers’ products may reduce our profitability and
business.
Our customers generally use the semiconductors produced in our fab in a wide variety of applications. We derive a
significant percentage of our operating revenues from customers who use our manufacturing services to make
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semiconductors for communication devices, consumer electronics, PCs and other electronic devices. Any significant decrease
in the demand for these devices or products may decrease the demand for our services and products. In addition, if the
average selling prices of communication devices, consumer electronics, PCs or other electronic devices decline significantly,
we ,may be pressured to reduce our selling prices, which may reduce our revenues and margins significantly. As
demonstrated by downturns in demand for high technology products in the past, market conditions can change rapidly,
without apparent warning or advance notice. In such instances, our customers may experience inventory buildup and/or
difficulties in selling their products and, in turn, may reduce or cancel orders for wafers from us, which may harm our
business and profitability. The timing, severity and recovery of these downturns cannot be predicted accurately or at all.
In order for demand for our wafer fabrication services to increase, the markets for the end products utilizing the
integrated circuits that we manufacture must develop and expand. For example, the success of our SiGe process technologies
will depend, in part, on the growth of markets for certain SiGe product applications. Because our services may be used in
many new applications, it is difficult to forecast demand. If demand is lower than expected, we may have excess capacity,
which may adversely affect our financial results. If demand is higher than expected, we may be unable to fill all of the orders
we receive, which may result in the loss of customers and revenues, which may adversely affect our profitability and
business.
The cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry and any resulting periodic overcapacity may lead to erosion of
sale prices, may make our business and operating results particularly vulnerable to economic downturns, and
may reduce our revenues, earnings and margins.
The semiconductor industry has historically been highly cyclical and subject to significant and often rapid increases
and decreases in product demand. Traditionally, companies in the semiconductor industry have expanded aggressively during
periods of decreased demand in order to have the capacity needed to meet expected demand in future upturns. If actual
demand does not increase or declines, or if companies in the industry expand too aggressively, the industry may experience a
period in which industry-wide capacity exceeds demand. This could result in overcapacity and excess inventories, potentially
leading to rapid erosion of average sale prices. The prices that we can charge our customers for our services are significantly
related to the overall worldwide supply of integrated circuits and semiconductor products. The overall supply of
semiconductor products is based in part on the capacity of other companies, which is outside of our control. In periods of
overcapacity, despite the fact that we utilize niche technologies and manufacture specialty products, we may have to lower
the prices we charge our customers for our services which may reduce our margins and weaken our financial condition and
results of operations. We cannot give assurance that an increase in the demand for foundry services in the future will not lead
to under-capacity, which could result in the loss of customers and materially adversely affect our revenues, earnings and
margins. Analysts believe that such patterns may repeat in the future. The overcapacity, under-utilization and downward price
pressure characteristic of a downturn in the semiconductor market and/or in the global economy, such as experienced several
times in the past, may negatively impact consumer and customer demand for the Company’s products, the end products of
the Company’s customers and the financial markets, which may adversely affect our business, our ability to raise funds, restructure and/or re-finance our debt and service our debt and other liabilities.
If we do not maintain our current customers and attract additional customers, our business and profitability may
be adversely affected.
Loss or cancellation of business from, or decreases in the sales volume or sales prices to, our significant customers,
or our failure to replace lost business with new customers, could seriously harm our financial results, revenues and business.
Collectively, our top four customers accounted for 60% of our revenues in 2015, including one of our customers that
accounted for 39% of our revenue in 2015 and from which we expect revenue to be at approximately the same percentage
level in 2016. The loss or reduction in volume of any one of these customers, whether due to their insolvency or their
unwillingness or inability to perform their obligations under their respective relationships with us, or if we are unable to
renew our engagements with them on commercially reasonable terms, or attract additional customers to replace such lost
business, may materially negatively impact our overall business and our consolidated financial position.
If we do not maintain and develop our technology processes and services, we may lose customers and may be
unable to attract new ones.
The semiconductor market is characterized by rapid change, including the following:


rapid technological developments;



evolving industry standards;
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changes in customer and product end user requirements;



frequent new product introductions and enhancements; and



short product life cycles with declining prices as products mature.

Our ability to maintain our current customer base and attract new customers is dependent in part on our ability to
continuously develop and introduce to production advanced specialized manufacturing process technologies and purchase the
appropriate equipment. If we are unable to successfully develop and introduce these processes to production in a timely
manner or at all, or if we are unable to purchase the appropriate equipment required for such processes, we may be unable to
maintain our current customer base and may be unable to attract new customers.
The semiconductor foundry business is highly competitive; our competitors may have competitive advantages
over us and our financial results may be adversely affected if we do not successfully compete in the industry.
The semiconductor foundry industry is highly competitive. We compete with more than ten independent dedicated
foundries, the majority of which are located in Asia-Pacific, including foundries based in Taiwan, China, Korea and
Malaysia, and with over 20 integrated semiconductor and end-product manufacturers that allocate a portion of their
manufacturing capacity to foundry operations. The foundries with which we compete benefit from their close geographic
proximity to companies involved in the design, manufacture and sale of semiconductor products.
As our competitors continue to expand their manufacturing capacity, there could be an increase in specialty
semiconductor capacity. As specialty capacity increases there may be more competition and pricing pressure on our services,
and underutilization of our capacity may result. Any significant increase in competition or pricing pressure on our services,
which may result in underutilization of our capacity, decrease of our profit margins, reduced earnings or increased losses.
In addition, some semiconductor companies have advanced their CMOS designs to 22 nanometer or smaller process
geometries. The smaller process geometries may provide customers with performance and integration features that may be
comparable to, or exceed, features offered by our specialty process technologies. The smaller process geometries may also
be more cost-effective at higher production volumes for certain applications, such as when a large amount of digital content
is required in a mixed-signal semiconductor and less analog content is then required. Our specialty processes will therefore
compete with these more advanced CMOS processes and some of our potential and existing customers could elect to design
these advanced CMOS processes into their next generation products. We are not currently capable, and do not currently plan
to become capable, of providing CMOS processes at these smaller geometries. If our potential or existing customers choose
to design their products using these advanced CMOS processes, our business may be negatively impacted.
In addition, many of our competitors may have one or more of the following competitive advantages over us:


greater manufacturing capacity;



multiple and more advanced manufacturing facilities;



more advanced technological capabilities;



a more diverse and established customer base;



greater financial, marketing, distribution and other resources;



a better cost structure; and/or

 better operational performance, including cycle time and yields.
If we do not compete successfully, our business and financial results may be adversely affected.
If we experience difficulty in achieving acceptable device yields, product performance and delivery times as a
result of manufacturing problems, our business may be adversely harmed.
The process technology for the manufacture of semiconductor wafers is highly complex, requires advanced and
costly equipment and is constantly being modified in an effort to improve device yields, product performance and delivery
times. Microscopic impurities such as dust and other contaminants, difficulties in the production process, defects in the key
materials and tools used to manufacture wafers and other factors can cause wafers to be rejected or individual semiconductors
on specific wafers to be non-functional. We may experience difficulty achieving acceptable device yields, product
performance and product delivery times in the future as a result of manufacturing problems. Although we continuously
enhance our manufacturing capabilities and efficiency, from time to time we have experienced production difficulties that
have caused delivery delays and quality control problems. Manufacturing issues we may face include the following:


difficulties in upgrading or expanding existing facilities;
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unexpected breakdowns in our manufacturing equipment and/or related facility systems;



unexpected events, such as an electricity outage or misprocess, affecting the manufacturing process;



difficulties in changing or upgrading our process technologies;



raw materials shortages and impurities;



delays in delivery and shortages of spare parts; and

 difficulties in maintenance and upgrade of our equipment.
Should such problems occur to a material degree, we may suffer delays in delivery, loss of reputation and/or a loss
of customers, any of which could adversely impact our business, revenues and financial condition.
If we are unable to purchase equipment and raw materials, we may not be able to manufacture our products in a
timely fashion, which may result in a loss of existing and potential new customers and may have an adverse effect
on our business and financial results.
To increase the production capability and maintain the quality of production in our facility, we must procure
additional equipment. In periods of high market demand, the lead times from order to delivery of manufacturing equipment
could be as long as 12 to 18 months. We also procure used equipment which can take longer to qualify into the
manufacturing process, hence we may not be able to manufacture our products in a timely manner. In addition, our
manufacturing processes use many raw materials, including silicon wafers, chemicals, gases and various metals, and require
large amounts of fresh water and electricity. Manufacturing equipment and raw materials generally are available from several
suppliers. In several instances, however, we purchase equipment and raw materials from a single source. Shortages in
supplies of manufacturing equipment and raw materials could occur due to an interruption of supply or increased industry
demand. Any such shortages could result in production delays that may result in a loss of existing and potential new
customers which may have a material adverse effect on our business and financial results.
We depend on intellectual property rights of third parties and failure to maintain or acquire licenses could harm
our business.
We depend on third party intellectual property in order for us to provide certain foundry services and design support
to our customers. If problems or delays arise with respect to the timely development, quality and provision of such
intellectual property to us, the design and production of our customers’ products could be delayed, resulting in
underutilization of our capacity. If any of our intellectual property vendors goes out of business, liquidates, merges with, or is
acquired by, another company that discontinues the vendor’s previous line of business, or if we fail to maintain or acquire
licenses to such intellectual property for any other reason, our business may be adversely affected.
Failure to comply with the intellectual property rights of third parties or to defend our intellectual property rights
could harm our business.
Our ability to compete successfully depends in part on our ability to operate without infringing on the proprietary
rights of others and defending our intellectual property rights. Because of the complexity of the technologies used and the
multitude of patents, copyrights and other overlapping intellectual property rights, it is often difficult for semiconductor
companies to determine infringement. Therefore, the semiconductor industry is characterized by frequent litigation regarding
patents, trade secrets and other intellectual property rights. We have been subject to intellectual property claims from time to
time, some of which have been resolved through license agreements, the terms of which have not had a material effect on our
business.
From time to time, we are a party to litigation matters incidental to the conduct of our business. Because of the
nature of the industry, we may be a party to infringement claims in the future. In the event any third party were to assert
infringement claims against us or our customers, we may have to consider alternatives including, but not limited to:


negotiating cross-license agreements;



acquiring licenses to the allegedly infringed patents, which may not be available on commercially reasonable
terms, if at all;



discontinuing use of certain process technologies, architectures, or designs, which could cause us to stop
manufacturing certain integrated circuits if we were unable to design around the allegedly infringed patents;



litigating the matter in court, incurring substantial legal fees and paying substantial monetary damages in the
event we lose; or
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 developing non-infringing technologies, which may not be feasible.
Any one or several of these alternatives could place substantial financial and other burdens on us and hinder our
business. Litigation, which could result in substantial costs to us and diversion of our resources, may be necessary to enforce
our patents or other intellectual property rights or to defend us or our customers against claimed infringement of the rights of
others. If we fail to obtain certain licenses or if we will be involved in litigation relating to alleged patent infringement or
other intellectual property matters, it may prevent us from manufacturing particular products or using particular technologies,
which may reduce our opportunities to generate revenues.
As of December 31, 2015, we had 174 patents in force. We intend to continue to file patent applications when
appropriate. The process of applying for patent protection may take a long time and be expensive. We cannot assure you that
patents will be issued from pending or future applications or that, if patents are issued, they will not be challenged,
invalidated or circumvented or that the rights granted under the patents will provide us with meaningful protection or any
commercial advantage. In addition, we cannot assure you that other countries in which we market our services and products
will protect our intellectual property rights to the same extent as the United States. Effective intellectual property
enforcement may be unavailable or limited in some countries. We cannot assure you that we will at all times enforce our
patents or other intellectual property rights and it may be difficult for us to protect our intellectual property from misuse or
infringement by other companies in certain countries. Further we cannot assure you that courts will uphold our intellectual
property rights or enforce the contractual arrangements that we have entered into to protect our proprietary technology, which
may reduce our opportunities to generate revenues. In the event that we are unable to enforce our intellectual property rights,
our business may be harmed.
We could be seriously harmed by failure to comply with environmental regulations.
Our business is subject to a variety of federal, state and local laws and governmental regulations relating to the use,
discharge and disposal of toxic or otherwise hazardous materials used in our production processes. If we fail to use, discharge
or dispose of hazardous materials appropriately, or if applicable environmental laws or regulations change in the future, we
may be subject to substantial liability or may be required to suspend or significantly modify our manufacturing operations.
We are subject to the risk of loss due to fire because the materials we use in our manufacturing processes are
highly flammable.
We use highly flammable materials such as silane and hydrogen in our manufacturing processes and are therefore
subject to the risk of loss arising from fires. The risk of fire associated with these materials cannot be completely eliminated.
Although we maintain insurance policies to reduce potential losses that may be caused by fire, including business interruption
insurance, our insurance coverage may not be sufficient to cover all of our potential losses due to a fire. If our fab were to be
damaged and/or cease operations as a result of a fire, and if our insurance proves to be inadequate, it may reduce our
manufacturing capacity and revenues. In addition, a power outage, even of very limited duration, caused by a fire may result
in a loss of wafers in production, deterioration in our fab yield and substantial downtime to reset equipment before resuming
production.
Possible product returns could harm our business.
Products manufactured by us may be returned within specified periods if they are defective or otherwise fail to meet
customers’ prior agreed upon specifications. Although product returns have historically been less than 1% of revenues, future
product returns in greater amounts may have an adverse effect on our business and financial results.
We are subject to risks related to our international operations.
We have generated substantial revenues from customers located in Asia-Pacific and in Europe. Because of our
international operations, we are vulnerable to the following risks:


we price our products primarily in US dollars; if the Euro, Yen or other currencies weaken relative to the US
dollar, our products may be relatively more expensive in these regions which may affect our ability to be
competitive compared to the local manufactures in these regions and could result in a decrease in our revenue;



the burdens and costs of compliance with foreign government regulation, as well as compliance with a variety
of foreign laws;
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general geopolitical risks such as political and economic instability, international terrorism, potential hostilities
and changes in diplomatic and trade relationships;



natural disasters affecting the countries in which we conduct our business;



imposition of regulatory requirements, tariffs, import and export restrictions and other trade barriers and
restrictions including the timing and availability of export licenses and permits;



adverse foreign and international tax rules and regulations, such as withholding taxes deducted from amounts
due to us may not be refunded to us by the tax authorities;



weak protection of our intellectual property rights in certain foreign countries;



delays in product shipments due to local customs restrictions;



laws and business practices favoring local companies at the customers’ countries;



difficulties in collecting accounts receivable; and

 difficulties and costs of staffing and managing foreign operations.
In addition, the United States and foreign countries may implement quotas, duties, taxes or other charges or
restrictions upon the importation or exportation of our products, leading to a reduction in sales and profitability in that
country. The geographical distance between the United States, Asia and Europe also creates a number of logistical and
communication challenges. We cannot assure you that we will be able to sufficiently mitigate all the risks related to our
international operations.
Our business could suffer if we are unable to retain and recruit qualified personnel.
We depend on the continued services of our senior executive officers, senior managers and skilled technical and
other personnel. Our business could suffer if we lose the services of some of these personnel due to resignation, medical
absence, illness or other reasons, and cannot find and integrate adequate replacement personnel into our senior management,
business or operations in a timely manner. We seek to recruit highly qualified personnel and there is intense competition for
the services of these personnel in the semiconductor industry. Competition for personnel may increase significantly in the
future as new fabless semiconductor companies as well as new semiconductor manufacturing facilities are established. Our
ability to retain existing personnel and attract new personnel is in part dependent on the compensation packages we offer. As
demand for qualified personnel increases, we may be forced to increase the compensation levels and to adjust the cash, equity
and other components of compensation we offer our personnel.
Our business forecasts are premised on the increasing use of outsourced foundry services by both fabless
semiconductor companies and integrated device manufacturers. Our business may not meet our forecasts if this
trend does not continue to develop in the manner we expect.
We operate as an independent semiconductor foundry focused primarily on specialty process technologies. Our
business model assumes that demand for these processes within the semiconductor industry will grow and follow the broader
trend towards outsourcing foundry operations. If the broader trend to outsourced foundry services does not prove applicable
to the specialty process technologies that we are focused on, our business and financial results may not meet our forecasts.
If we are not able to continue transitioning our product mix from standard CMOS process technologies to
specialty process technologies, our business and results of operations may be harmed.
Since Jazz Semiconductor’s separation from Conexant, it has focused its research and development and marketing
efforts primarily on specialty process technologies and adding new customers in the specialty field. These specialty process
technologies include advanced analog, radio frequency, high voltage, bipolar and silicon germanium bipolar CMOS
processes and double-diffused metal oxide semiconductor processes. To be competitive, reduce our dependence on standard
process technologies and successfully implement our business plan, we will need to continue to derive a significant
percentage of our revenues from specialty process technologies. In order to expand and diversify our customer base, we need
to identify and attract customers who will use the specialty process technologies we provide. We cannot assure you that
demand for our specialty process technologies will increase or that we will be able to attract customers who use them.
In addition, because we intend to continue to focus on specialty process technologies, we do not plan to invest in the
research and development of more advanced standard CMOS processes. As standard CMOS process technologies continue to
advance, we will not remain competitive in these process technologies. If Jazz’s current customers switch to another foundry
for standard CMOS process technologies and we are unable to increase our revenues from our specialty process technologies,
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Jazz’s business, results of operations and cash flows may be harmed.
Our historical financial performance may not be indicative of our future results.
If our potential or existing customers design their products using smaller geometry CMOS processes at other
foundries, and we are unable to increase the revenues we derive from our specialty process technologies, our business, results
of operations and cash flows may be harmed.
Failure to comply with existing or future governmental regulations could reduce our sales or increase our
manufacturing costs.
The semiconductors we produce and the export of technologies used in our manufacturing processes may be subject
to U.S. export control and other regulations implemented by the U.S. and/or other countries. Failure to comply with existing
or evolving U.S. or foreign governmental regulation or to obtain timely domestic or foreign regulatory approvals or
certificates could materially harm our business by reducing our sales, or requiring extensive modifications to our customers’
products. Neither we nor our customers may export products using or incorporating controlled technology without obtaining
an export license. These restrictions may make foreign competitors facing less stringent controls on their processes and their
customers’ products more competitive in the global market than us or our customers. The U.S. government may not approve
any pending or future export license requests. In addition, the list of products and countries for which export approval is
required, and the regulatory policies with respect thereto, may be revised from time to time.
A significant portion of our workforce is unionized, and our operations may be adversely affected by work
stoppages, strikes or other collective actions which may disrupt our production and adversely affect the yield and
deliveries of our fab.
A significant portion of our employees at our Newport Beach, California fab are represented by a union and covered
by a collective bargaining agreement, which was renewed for three additional years, effective as of July 1, 2015. We cannot
predict the effect that continued union representation or future organizational activities will have on our business. We cannot
assure you that we will not experience a material work stoppage, strike or other collective action in the future, which may
disrupt our production and adversely affect the yield, deliveries of our fab, our customer relations and operational results.
If we are unable to collaborate successfully with electronic design automation vendors and third-party design
service companies to meet our customers’ design needs, our business may be harmed.
We have established relationships with electronic design automation vendors and third-party design service
companies. We work together with these vendors to develop complete design kits that our customers can use to meet their
design needs using our process technologies. Our ability to meet our customers’ design needs successfully, including their
schedule and budget requirements, depends on the availability and quality of the relevant services, tools and intellectual
property provided by electronic design automation vendors and design service providers. Difficulties or delays in these areas
may adversely affect our ability to meet our customers’ needs, and thereby harm our business.
If the integrated circuits we manufacture are integrated into defective products, we may be subject to product
liability or other claims which could damage our reputation and harm our business.
Our customers integrate our custom integrated circuits into their products which they then sell to end users. If these
products are defective or malfunction, we may be subject to product liability claims as well as possible recalls, safety alerts
or advisory notices relating to, the product. We cannot assure you that our insurance policies will sbe adequate to satisfy
claims that may be made against Jazz. Also, we may be unable to obtain insurance in the future at satisfactory rates, with
adequate coverage, or at all. Product liability claims or product recalls in the future, regardless of their ultimate outcome, may
have a material adverse effect on our business, reputation, financial condition and on our ability to attract and retain
customers.
Our production yields and business could be significantly harmed by natural disasters, particularly earthquakes.
Our Newport Beach, California fab is located in southern California, a region known for seismic activity. Due to the
complex and delicate nature of our manufacturing processes, our facility is particularly sensitive to the effects of vibrations
associated with even minor earthquakes. Our business operations depend on our ability to maintain and protect our facility,
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computer systems and personnel. We cannot be certain that precautions we have taken to seismically upgrade our fab will be
adequate to protect our facility in the event of an earthquake. Earthquakes may lead to fire in the fab or other material
damage, and any resulting damage could seriously disrupt production and result in reduced revenues. In addition, we have no
insurance coverage to compensate us for losses that may be incurred as a result of earthquakes, and any such losses or
damages incurred by us may have a material adverse effect on our business.
Climate change may negatively affect our business.
There is increasing concern that climate change is occurring and may have dramatic effects on human activity if no
aggressive remediation steps are taken. Legislative developments with respect to reductions in greenhouse gas emissions may
result in increased energy, transportation and raw material costs.
Scientific examination of, political attention to, and rules and regulations on, issues surrounding the existence and
extent of climate change may result in increased production costs due to increase in the prices of energy and introduction of
energy or carbon tax. A variety of regulatory developments have been introduced that focus on restricting or managing
emissions of carbon dioxide, methane and other greenhouse gases. Enterprises may need to purchase new equipment at
higher costs or raw materials with lower carbon footprints. These developments and further legislation that is likely to be
enacted may adversely affect our operations. Changes in environmental regulations, such as those on the use of per
fluorinated compounds, may increase our production costs, which may adversely affect our results of operation and financial
condition.
In addition, more frequent droughts and floods, extreme weather conditions and rising sea levels may occur due to
climate change. For example, transportation suspension caused by extreme weather conditions may harm the distribution of
our products. We cannot predict the economic impact, if any, of disasters resulting from climate change.
Compliance with the US Conflict Minerals Law may affect our ability or the ability of our suppliers to purchase
raw materials at an effective cost.
Many industries rely on materials which are subject to regulation concerning certain minerals sourced from the
Democratic Republic of Congo ("DRC") or adjoining countries, which include Sudan, Uganda, Rwanda, Burundi, United
Republic of Tanzania, Zambia, Angola, Congo, and Central African Republic. These minerals are commonly referred to as
conflict minerals. Conflict minerals which may be used in our industry or by our suppliers include Columbite-tantalite
(derivative of tantalum [Ta]), Cassiterite (derivative of tin [Sn]), gold [Au], Wolframite (derivative of tungsten [W]), and
Cobalt [Co]. We comply with the annual disclosure and reporting requirements adopted by the SEC with respect to use of
conflict minerals mined from the DRC and adjoining countries. There may be costs associated with complying with these
disclosure requirements (for example, if supplier changes become necessary), including for diligence to determine the sources
of conflict minerals used in our products and other potential changes to products, processes or sources of supply as a
consequence of such verification activities. Although we expect that we and our vendors will be able to continue to comply
with these requirements, there can be no guarantee that we will be able to gather all the information required from our
vendors. In addition, there is increasing public sentiment that companies should avoid using conflict materials from the DRC
and adjoining countries. Although we believe our suppliers do not rely on such conflict materials, either because the suppliers
are located outside of the DRC and adjoining countries, or because our suppliers have been certified as “conflict-free” by an
internationally-recognized validation scheme, there can be no guarantee that we will continue to be able to obtain adequate
supplies of materials needed in our production from such suppliers. A failure to obtain necessary information or to maintain
adequate supplies of materials from supply chains outside the DRC and adjoining countries, or that have been certified as
“conflict-free” by an internationally-recognized validation scheme, may delay our production, increasing the risk of losing
customers and business.
Our production may be interrupted if we are not successful in maintaining sufficient sources of fresh water and
electricity.
The semiconductor manufacturing process requires extensive amounts of fresh water and a stable source of
electricity. Droughts, pipeline interruptions, power interruptions, electricity shortages or government intervention,
particularly in the form of rationing, are factors that could restrict our access to these utilities in the area in which our fab is
located. In particular, our Newport Beach, California fab is located in an area that is susceptible to water and electricity
shortages. If there is an insufficient supply of fresh water or electricity to satisfy our requirements, we may need to limit or
delay our production, which may adversely affect our business and operating results. Increases in utility costs would also
increase our operating expenses. In addition, a power outage, even of very limited duration, could result in a loss of wafers in
production, deterioration in our fab yield and substantial downtime to reset equipment before resuming production.
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Risks relating to construction activities and our fabrication facility lease.
We lease our fabrication facilities and offices under lease contracts that we can extend until 2027, through the
exercise of an option at our sole discretion to extend the lease period from 2022 to 2027. A few years ago our landlord began
a construction project adjacent to the fabrication facility. Although we do not anticipate an adverse impact to our operations,
it is possible that construction activities adjacent to our fabrication facility may result in temporary reductions or interruptions
in the supply of utilities to the property and that a portion or all of the fabrication facility may need to be idled temporarily
during development. If construction activities limit or interrupt the supply of water, gas or electricity to our fabrication
facility or cause significant vibrations or other disruptions, it could limit or delay our production, which may adversely affect
our business and operating results. In addition, an unplanned power outage caused by construction activities, even of very
limited duration, may result in a loss of wafers in production, deterioration in our fab yield and substantial downtime to reset
equipment before resuming production. In addition, the recent lease amendment set forth certain obligations of the Company
and the landlord, including certain noise abatement actions at the fabrication facility.
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties
Included above under “Item 1. Business – Properties.”
Item 3. Legal Proceedings
From time to time, we may be party to a variety of legal, administrative, regulatory and/or government proceedings,
claims and inquiries arising in the normal course of business. While the results of any such proceedings, claims and inquiries
cannot be predicted with certainty, management believes that the total liabilities to the Company that may arise as a result of
such matters currently pending will not have a material adverse effect on the Company.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
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PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities
As a result of the November 2015 reorganization, Tower US Holdings Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tower, is
now the only registered holder of record of the Company’s common stock.
Dividends
We have not paid any dividends on our common stock to date. The payment of dividends, if and when paid, will be
within the discretion of the board of directors and will be contingent upon our revenues and earnings, if any, capital
requirements, the terms of the Credit Line Agreement with Wells Fargo and the indentures underlying our notes, and our
general financial condition.
Item 6. Selected Financial Data
Omitted pursuant to General Instruction I (1) (a) and (b) of Form 10-K.
Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
The following discussion and analysis of the financial condition and results of operations of the Company for the
years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements and related notes as well as other information contained in this Annual Report, including the information in the
section of this report entitled “Risk Factors”.
FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS
This annual report may contain “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the federal securities laws made
pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Report Act of 1995. These statements, which
represent our expectations or beliefs concerning various future events, may contain words such as “may,” “will,” “expects,”
“anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “estimates,” or other words indicating future results. Such statements may
include but are not limited to statements concerning the following:


anticipated trends in revenues;



growth opportunities in domestic and international markets;



new and enhanced channels of distribution;



customer acceptance and satisfaction with our products;



expected trends in operating and other expenses;



purchase of raw materials at levels to meet forecasted demand;



ability to timely fulfill customers’ demand



anticipated cash and intentions regarding usage of cash;



changes in effective tax rates; and

 anticipated product enhancements or releases.
These forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties, including those risks and uncertainties
described in this annual report that could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated as of the date of this
report. We assume no obligation to update any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances arising after the
date of this report.
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Results of Operations
For the year ended December 31, 2015, we had a net profit of $30.3 million compared to a net loss of $11.3 million
for the year ended December 31, 2014.
The following table sets forth certain statement of operations data as a percentage of total revenues for the periods
indicated.
Year Ended
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Revenue
100%
100%
73.8
82.2
Cost of revenue
Gross profit
26.2
17.8
Operating expenses:
Research and development
6.4
6.1
Selling, general and administrative
7.2
6.5
13.6
12.6
Total operating expenses
Operating profit
12.6
5.2
Interest expenses, net
(1.8)
(3.8)
Other financing expense, net
(1.2)
(9.3)
Other expense, net
(0.1)
-Income tax benefit
1.6
2.9
11.1%
(5.0)%
Net income (loss)
Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014
Revenue
Our net revenue for the year ended December 31, 2015 amounted to $271.5 million as compared to $221.5 million
for the year ended December 31, 2014. The revenue increase is mainly attributable to 23% higher wafer quantities sold
during the year ended December 31, 2015.
Cost of Revenue
Cost of revenue amounted to $200.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared to $182.1 million
for the year ended December 31, 2014. The increase in cost of revenue was mainly due to the increase in quantities of wafers
shipped, as described above.
Gross Profit
Gross profit was $71.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared to $39.3 million for the year
ended December 31, 2014, a $31.9 million improvement that resulted from the components described above.
Operating Expenses
Operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2015 amounted to $36.8 million, as compared to $27.9 million
for the year ended December 31, 2014, reflecting a sustained level of approximately 14% and 13% of revenue for the years
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
Interest Expenses, Net, Other Financing Expense, Net and Other Expense, Net
Interest expenses, net, other financing expense, net and other expense, net for the year ended December 31, 2015
amounted to $8.5 million, as compared to $29.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2014. Such reduction is mainly due
to: (1) approximately $9.8 million non-cash cost resulting from the 2014 Exchange Agreement included in the year ended
December 31, 2014; and (2) lower interest and financing expenses recorded in the year ended December 31, 2015 following
the redemption of the remaining 2010 Notes in January 2015 in the amount of $44.7 million.
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Income Tax Benefit
Income tax benefit amounted to $4.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, as compared to income tax
benefit of $6.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2014. The statute of limitations with respect to tax year 2010 expired
in March 2015. As a result, we recorded a tax benefit for such year in the amount of approximately $11 million during the
three months ended March 31, 2015. Such benefit was partially offset by higher tax expenses attributable to higher pre-tax
income reflecting the revenue and profit growth in the year ended December 31, 2015.
Net Profit
Net profit for the year ended December 31, 2015 was $30.3 million as compared to $11.3 million net loss for the
year ended December 31, 2014. The $41.6 million improvement in the net profit is mainly due to the following items
described above: (i) $23.0 million better operating profit; (ii) $20.5 million lower interest expenses, net, other financing
expense, net and other expense, net; offset by (iii) $1.9 million lower income tax benefit.
Changes in Financial Condition
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash and cash equivalents were $23.5 million as of December 31, 2015, as compared to $73.4 million as of
December 31, 2014. The main cash activities during the year ended December 31, 2015 were approximately $70 million
positive cash generated from operating activities, investment in fixed assets of approximately $54 million, net, advance
payment to a related party of $21 million and approximately $45 million principal payments of notes outstanding.
As of December 31, 2015 our debt par value was approximately $77 million, comprised of approximately (i)
$58 million par value of 8% convertible senior notes due December 2018 (the “2014 Notes”, as defined in Note 5 to our
consolidated financial statements included in this report); and (ii) $19 million borrowing under the Wells Fargo line of
credit due December 2018. We will need a significant amount of cash to satisfy our debt and meet our other cash needs,
which may not be available to us. Our ability to make payments on, or repay or refinance, our debt and to fund capital
expenditures, working capital and other cash needs will depend largely upon our future operating performance , our
ability to comply with borrowing base requirements to drawdown additional funds, if required, from the Wells Fargo credit
line, our ability to extend or renew the credit line from the bank and our ability to pay or refinance the 2014 Notes. Our future
operating performance, to a certain extent, is subject to general economic conditions, financial markets, competitive,
legislative, regulatory and other factors that are beyond our control. We cannot assure you that our business will
generate sufficient cash flow from operations, that we will be able to repay or refinance the notes and that future
borrowings will be available to us under the credit facilities or from other sources in an amount and on terms and
conditions sufficient to enable us to make payments on our debt or to fund our other liquidity needs. In order to finance
our debt and other liabilities and obligations, we continue to explore measures to obtain funds from sources in addition to
cash on hand and expected cash flow from our ongoing operations, including sales of assets; issuance of new securities;
intellectual property licensing; improving operational efficiencies and sales; and exploring other alternatives to reduce our
debt, including debt refinancing or restructuring or recycling of existing debt into new debt or other vehicles. Wells Fargo
line of credit imposes certain limitations on our ability to repay or refinance the notes and/or to incur additional debt
without Wells Fargo’s consent. Any default on payment of the notes or any default on a permitted refinancing of the
notes would trigger a cross default under the Wells Fargo line of credit, which would permit the lenders to accelerate
the obligations thereunder, potentially requiring us to repay or refinance the Wells Fargo credit line. There is no
assurance that we will be able to obtain sufficient funding from the financing sources detailed above or other sources in a
timely manner to allow us to fully or partially repay our debt. A default by us on any of our debt could have a material
adverse effect on our operations and the interests of our creditors, and may affect our ability to fulfill our debt obligations
and other liabilities.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
In the normal course of business, we are exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates, certain foreign
currency exchange rate fluctuations, and certain commodity prices. Our exposure to market risk results primarily from
fluctuations in interest rates that affect our variable-rate borrowings. Our sales and expenses are primarily denominated in
U.S. dollars, and our exposure to foreign currency rate fluctuations is not significant to our financial condition and results of
operations. We have not used derivative financial instruments to manage foreign currency exchange risk exposure or interest
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rate exposure.
We estimate that a 1.0% increase in interest rates would have an insignificant impact on our financial statements due
to the structure of our investment portfolio.
As of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, we did not have any relationships with unconsolidated entities or
financial partners, such as entities often referred to as structured finance or special purpose entities, which would have been
established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited purposes.
As such, we are not exposed to any financing, liquidity, market or credit risk that could arise if we had engaged in such
relationships.
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Brightman Almagor Zohar
1 Azrieli Center
Tel Aviv 67021
P.O.B. 16593, Tel Aviv 61164
Israel
Tel: +972 (3) 608 5555
Fax: +972 (3) 609 4022
info@deloitte.co.il
www.deloitte.com

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholder of
Jazz US Holdings Inc.
Newport Beach, CA

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Jazz US Holdings Inc. and subsidiaries, (the "Company)
(a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of Tower Semiconductor Ltd.) as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 and the related
consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive loss, shareholder's equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2015. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement .The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit
of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as
a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amount and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Jazz US
Holdings Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2015 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Brightman Almagor Zohar & Co.
Certified public accountants
A Member Firm of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Tel Aviv, Israel
February 29, 2016
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Jazz US Holdings Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands)

December 31,
2015
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:
Trade receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $0 at December
31, 2015 and December 31, 2014
Other receivables
Inventories
Deferred tax asset
Other current assets
Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net
Goodwill
Other assets

December 31,
2014

$

23,488 $

73,387

Total assets
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current maturities of debentures
Accounts payable
Accrued compensation and benefits
Deferred revenues and customers’ advances
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long term liabilities:
Long-term bank debt
Notes
Deferred tax liability
Employee related liabilities
Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Stockholders' equity:
Ordinary shares of $0.001 and $1 par value
as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively;
Authorized: 1,000 and 200 shares
as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively;
Issued: 100 shares
as of December 31, 2015 and 2014;
Outstanding: 100 shares
as of December 31, 2015 and 2014;
Additional paid-in capital
Cumulative stock based compensation
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Retained earnings
Total stockholders' equity

$

27,399
1,503
29,915
3,642
3,121
89,068
95,699
20,048
7,000
22,714
234,529 $

30,351
3,301
30,794
4,951
1,245
144,029
71,527
24,097
7,000
3,945
250,598

-- $
18,233
6,560
6,371
18,221
49,385

45,577
25,485
6,350
2,220
9,031
88,663

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

$

$

See accompanying notes.
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19,100
45,826
2,667
2,102
2,104
121,184

19,100
42,889
-4,387
14,842
169,881

74,986
4,971
(327)
33,715
113,345
234,529 $

74,986
2,802
(503)
3,432
80,717
250,598

Jazz US Holdings Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations
(in thousands)
2015

Revenues
Cost of revenues
Gross profit
Operating expenses:
Research and development
Selling, general and administrative
Amortization related to a lease agreement early termination
Total operating expenses
Operating profit (loss)
Interest expenses, net
Other financing expense, net
Other expense, net
Profit (loss) before income tax benefit
Income tax benefit

$

Net profit (loss)

$
See accompanying notes.
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Year ended December 31,
2014

271,493
200,246
71,247
17,306
19,470
-36,776
34,471
(5,019)
(3,258)
(271)
25,923
4,360
30,283

$

$

221,469
182,120
39,349
13,481
14,418
-27,899
11,450
(8,334)
(20,706)
-(17,590)
6,325
(11,265)

2013

$

$

166,485
136,200
30,285
11,662
12,485
7,464
31,611
(1,326)
(7,330)
(7,033)
(433)
(16,122)
5,346
(10,776)

Jazz US Holdings Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(Loss)
(in thousands)

Net income (loss)
Change in employees plan assets and benefit obligations ,net of
taxes $97, $1,776 and $1,274 for the years ended December 31,
2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively

Year ended December 31,
2015
2014
2013
$ 30,283 $ (11,265) $ (10,776)

$

Comprehensive income (loss)
See accompanying notes.
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176
30,459

(3,860)
$ (15,125)

$

2,350
(8,426)

Jazz US Holdings Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity
(in thousands, except share data)
Common Stock

Shares

Balance at December 31, 2012
Stock compensation expense
Tax benefit relating to stock based
compensation
Other comprehensive income
Net Loss
Balance at December 31, 2013
Stock compensation expense
Tax benefit relating to stock based
compensation
Equity component, net relating to
the 2014 notes exchange agreement
Other comprehensive loss
Net Loss
Balance at December 31, 2014
Stock compensation expense
Tax expense relating to stock based
compensation
Other comprehensive income
Net Income
Balance at December 31, 2015

Amount

Additional
paid-in capital
and cumulative
stock based
compensation

Accumulated other
comprehensive
income (loss)

$

$

100 $
--

---

---100 $
--

------

--

--

(42)

--

---100 $
--

------

11,410
--77,788
1,591

-(3,860)
-(503)
--

---100 $

-----

$

$

$
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65,669
261
(181)
--65,749
671

578
--79,957

$

$

$

1,007
--2,350
-3,357
--

-176
-(327)

Retained earnings

$

$

Total
stockholders'
equity

25,473 $
--

92,149
261

--(10,776)
14,697 $
--

(181)
2,350
(10,776)
83,803
671

--

$

$

(42)

--(11,265)
3,432 $
--

11,410
(3,860)
(11,265)
80,717
1,591

--30,283
33,715 $

578
176
30,283
113,345

Jazz US Holdings Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

2015

Year ended December 31,
2014
2013

Operating activities:
Net income (loss)
$
30,283
Adjustments to reconcile net profit (loss) for the period to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Financing cost relating to the 2014 Exchange Agreement
-Depreciation and amortization of intangible assets
37,139
Notes accretion and amortization of deferred financing costs
3,136
Stock based compensation expense
1,591
Other income, net
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Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade receivables
2,685
Inventories
879
Other receivables and other current assets
(835)
Accounts payable
(10,896)
Due to related parties, net
11,645
Accrued compensation and benefits
210
Deferred revenue and customers’ advances
4,151
Other current liabilities
86
Deferred tax liability, net
3,879
Employee related liabilities and long-term liabilities
(14,749)
69,475
Net cash provided by operating activities
Investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment
(54,489)
Proceeds related to property and equipment
798
Advance payment to related party
(21,000)
(74,691)
Net cash used in investing activities
Financing activities:
Debt repayment
(44,683)
Proceeds from issuance of notes, net
-(44,683)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
(49,899)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period
73,387
$
23,488
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

$

$

(11,265)

$

(10,776)

9,817
44,783
11,007
671
--

-47,720
6,931
261
433

(9,925)
(4,497)
3,514
2,372
4,899
365
98
(782)
(8,316)
(1,190)
41,551

(688)
(2,277)
(4,522)
(2,598)
(2,021)
(340)
1,919
480
(4,550)
(1,945)
28,027

(25,296)
817
-(24,479)

(21,314)
1,332
-(19,982)

(4,250)
9,214
4,964
22,036
51,351
73,387

---8,045
43,306
51,351

$

Non-cash activities:
2015
Investments in property, plant and equipment
Equity increase arising from exchange of straight to convertible debt

$
$

Year ended December 31,
2014
2013
6,929 $
10,852 $
6,304
-- $
9,609 $
--

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

$
Cash paid during the period for interest
$
Cash paid (received) during the period for income taxes
See accompanying notes.
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Year ended December 31,
2015
2014
2013
5,333
$
9,929
$
7,500
3,330
$
(1,539)
$
--

Jazz US Holdings Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 1: Business and Formation
The Company
Jazz US Holdings Inc. is based in Newport Beach, California and through its direct and indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries Jazz Semiconductor, Inc. and Newport Fab LLC (“the Company”), is an independent semiconductor foundry
focused on specialty process technologies for the manufacture of analog intensive mixed-signal semiconductor devices. The
Company’s specialty process technologies include advanced analog, radio frequency, high voltage, bipolar and silicon
germanium bipolar complementary metal oxide (“SiGe”) semiconductor processes, for the manufacture of analog and mixedsignal semiconductors. Its customers' analog and mixed-signal semiconductor devices are used in cellular phones, wireless
local area networking devices, digital TVs, set-top boxes, gaming devices, switches, routers and broadband modems.
Since 2008 when Tower Semiconductor Ltd. (“Tower”) acquired all the shares of Jazz Technologies, Inc, the
Company has been a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tower. Since November 2015 (see below), the Company has been a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Jazz Technologies, Inc. (now known as Tower US Holdings Inc.), which remains wholly owned
by Tower.
In November 2015, Jazz Technologies Inc. transferred all of its liabilities and all of its assets, including its
ownership of all of the shares of Jazz Semiconductor Inc., to Jazz US Holdings Inc., a newly established company registered
under the laws of Delaware and fully owned by Jazz Technologies Inc. (now known as Tower US Holdings Inc.) which is
wholly owned by Tower. The transaction had the effect of establishing Jazz US Holdings as an intermediate holding
company, holding all of the shares of Jazz Semiconductor.
On December 22, 2015, pursuant to a supplemental indenture entered into among Tower US Holdings, Inc.
(formerly Jazz Technologies, Inc.), Jazz US Holdings Inc. and the trustee for the convertible senior notes due December
2018, Jazz US Holdings Inc. replaced Jazz Technologies, Inc. as obligor under these notes.
Because the November 2015 reorganization involved companies under common control, the financial statements of
Jazz US Holdings Inc. and subsidiaries are presented as if the reorganization had occurred on the first day of earliest year
presented.
As used in this annual report, “we,” “us,” “our,” “Jazz,” the “Company” and words of similar import refer to Jazz
Technologies Inc., including its subsidiaries, for the period preceding November 23, 2015, and Jazz US Holdings Inc.,
including its subsidiaries following such date. “Jazz Semiconductor” refers solely to Jazz Semiconductor, Inc.
Because the Securities and Exchange Commission does not accept filings from voluntary filers such as Jazz US
Holdings Inc. who have not previously filed a registration statement under either the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, this annual report and future quarterly and annual reports of financial information by the Company
will not be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, but will be provided directly to the Trustee and any record
Holder of the notes in accordance with Section 4.03 of the Indenture governing the Senior Notes Due 2018 and will also be
available on the TowerJazz website at www.towerjazz.com under the “Financial Statements” tab, which is under the“
Investors” tab. To view the historical SEC filings by the Company on the SEC’s EDGAR website, go to www.sec.gov, and
search for filings made by Jazz Technologies, Inc.
Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries. They contain all accruals and adjustments that, in the opinion of management, are necessary to present fairly the
Company’s consolidated financial position at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, and the consolidated results of its
operations and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2015, December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013. All
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.
Reclassifications
Certain amounts in prior years’ financial statements have been reclassified in order to conform to 2015 presentation.
Use of Estimates
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The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“US
GAAP”) requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ materially from those estimates.
Revenue Recognition
The Company’s net revenues are generated principally from sales of semiconductor wafers. The Company also
derives revenues from engineering and design support and other technical and support services.
In accordance with ASC Topic 605 “Revenue Recognition”, the Company recognizes revenues from sale of
products when the following fundamental criteria are met: (i) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; (ii) delivery has
occurred or services have been rendered, (iii) the price to the customer is fixed or determinable; and (iv) collection of the
resulting receivable is reasonably assured. These criteria are usually met at the time of product shipment. Revenues are
recognized when the acceptance criteria are satisfied, based on performing electronic, functional and quality tests on the
products prior to shipment. Such Company testing reliably demonstrates that the products meet all of the specified criteria
prior to formal customer acceptance.
The Company provides for sales returns and allowances relating to specified yield or quality commitments as a
reduction of revenues at the time of shipment based on historical experience and specific identification of events necessitating
an allowance.
Revenues for engineering, design and other support services are recognized ratably over the contract term or as
services are performed.
Advances received from customers for future engineering services and/or product purchases are deferred until
services are rendered or products are shipped to the customer.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of banks deposits and short-term investments (with original maturities of three
months or less).
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
The allowance for doubtful accounts is computed mainly on the specific identification basis for accounts whose
collectability, in the Company’s estimation, is uncertain.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The Company measures its financial assets and liabilities in accordance with US GAAP. For financial instruments,
including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses, the carrying amounts
approximate fair value due to their short maturities.
Functional Currency
The Company uses the U.S. Dollar as its functional currency. All of the Company’s sales and a substantial majority
of its costs are transacted in U.S. Dollars.
Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined for raw materials and supplies mainly on the
basis of the weighted average moving price per unit. Cost is determined for work in process and finished goods on the basis
of actual production costs.
Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are presented at cost, including capitalizable costs. Capitalizable costs include only
those costs that are identifiable with, and related to, the property and equipment and are incurred prior to their initial
operation. Identifiable incremental, direct costs include costs associated with constructing, establishing and installing
property and equipment, and costs directly related to pre-production test runs of property and equipment necessary for
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preparing such property and equipment for their intended use. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.
Property and equipment are presented net of accumulated depreciation and amortization.
Depreciation is calculated based on the straight-line method over the estimated economic lives commonly used in
the industry of the assets or terms of the related leases, and range from 3 to 19 years. Leasehold improvements are amortized
over the life of the asset or term of the lease, whichever is shorter. For impairment of assets tests see below.
Intangible Assets
Intangible assets include mainly the valuation amount attributed to the intangible assets as part of the Merger with
Tower. The amounts attributed to intangible assets are amortized over the expected estimated economic life of the intangible
assets and as commonly used in the industry.
Impairment of Assets
The Company reviews long-lived assets and intangible assets on a periodic basis, as well as when such a review is
required based upon relevant circumstances, to determine whether events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if required is recognized based upon the difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of such assets, in accordance with ASC 360-10, “Property, Plant and
Equipment”.
Impairment of Goodwill
Goodwill is subject to an impairment test on an annual basis or upon the occurrence of certain events or
circumstances. The goodwill impairment test is performed according to the following principles: An initial qualitative
assessment of the likelihood of impairment may be performed. If this step does not result in a more likely than not indication
of impairment, no further impairment testing is required. If it does result in a more likely than not indication of impairment,
the impairment test is performed.
Goodwill impairment is assessed based on a comparison of the fair value of the unit, to which the goodwill is
ascribed, and the underlying carrying value of its net assets, including goodwill. If the carrying amount of the unit exceeds its
fair value, the implied fair value of the Company’s goodwill is compared with its carrying amount to measure the amount of
impairment loss, if any.
The Company uses the income approach methodology of valuation that includes discounted cash flows to determine
the fair value of the unit. Significant management judgment is required in the forecasts of future operating results used for
this methodology.
Accounting for Income Taxes
The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with ASC 740, “Income Taxes”. This topic prescribes the
use of the liability method whereby deferred tax asset and liability account balances are determined based on differences
between financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred taxes are computed based on the tax rates
anticipated (under applicable law as of the balance sheet date) to be in effect when the deferred taxes are expected to be paid
or realized.
We evaluate the realizability of our deferred tax assets and establish valuation allowances when it is more likely
than not that all or a portion of our deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is
dependent upon the generation of future taxable income. We consider all available positive and negative evidence in making
this assessment, including, but not limited to, the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities and projected future taxable
income. In circumstances where there is sufficient negative evidence indicating that our deferred tax assets are not morelikely-than-not realizable, we establish a valuation allowance.
The future utilization of the Company’s net operating loss carry forwards to offset future taxable income is subject
to an annual limitation as a result of ownership changes that have occurred or that could occur in the future. The Company
has had two “change in ownership” events that limit the utilization of net operating loss carry forwards. The second “change
in ownership” event occurred on September 19, 2008, the date of the Company’s merger with Tower.
We use a two-step approach to recognizing and measuring uncertain tax positions. The first step is to evaluate tax
positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return by assessing whether they are more-likely-than-not sustainable, based
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solely on their technical merits, upon examination and including resolution of any related appeals or litigation process. The
second step is to measure the associated tax benefit of each position as the largest amount that we believe is more-likely-thannot realizable. Differences between the amount of tax benefits taken or expected to be taken in our income tax returns and the
amount of tax benefits recognized in our financial statements, represent our unrecognized income tax benefits, which are
recorded as a liability. Our policy is to include interest and penalties related to unrecognized income tax benefits as a
component of income tax expense.
Comprehensive Income (Loss)
In accordance with ASC Topic 220, “Comprehensive Income”, comprehensive income (loss) represents the change
in shareholders’ equity during a reporting period from transactions and other events and circumstances from non-owner
sources. It includes all changes in equity during a reporting period except those resulting from investments by owners and
distributions to owners. Other comprehensive income (loss) represents gains and losses that are included in comprehensive
income but excluded from net income.
Stock Based Compensation
The Company applies the provisions of ASC 718 “Compensation - Stock Compensation”, under which employee
share-based equity awards are accounted for under the fair value method. Accordingly, stock-based compensation to
employees and directors is measured at the grant date, based on the fair value of the award. The Company estimates stock
price volatility based on historical volatility of Tower’s stock price. The Company uses the straight-line attribution method to
recognize stock-based compensation costs over the vesting period of the award.
The key assumptions used in the Black-Scholes model in determining the fair value of options granted during the
years ended 2014 and 2013 are as follows:
Year ended December
31, 2014

Expected life in years
Expected annual volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Dividend yield

4.75 years
47%-54%
1.4%-1.8%
0.00%

Year ended December
31, 2013

4.75 years
51%-65%
0.8%-1.8%
0.00%

RSU
The Company granted in 2015 Restricted Stock Units (“RSU”) Under the 2013 Plan to its employees vesting over
up to three year period. The Company measures compensation expense for the RSUs based on the closing market price of the
ordinary shares immediately prior to the date of grant expensing it through the applicable vesting period.
Concentrations
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk consist principally of cash,
cash equivalents and trade accounts receivable.
The Company generally does not require collateral for insurance of receivables. An allowance for doubtful accounts
is determined with respect to those amounts that were determined to be doubtful of collection. The Company performs
ongoing credit evaluations of its customers.
Accounts receivables representing 10% or more of net accounts receivable balance consist of one customer that
accounted for 42% as of December 31, 2015 and 44% as of December 31, 2014.
Net revenues from significant customers representing 10% or more of net revenues consist of one customer that
accounted for 39% for the year ended December 31, 2015, 33% for the year ended December 31, 2014 and 23% for the year
ended December 31, 2013.
As a result of the Company’s concentration of its customer base, loss or cancellation of business from, or significant
changes in scheduled deliveries of products sold to, these customers, or a change in their financial position, could materially
and adversely affect the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows.
The Company operates a single manufacturing facility located in Newport Beach, California. A major interruption in
the manufacturing operations at this facility would have a material adverse affect on the consolidated financial position and
results of operations of the Company.
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Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") amended the existing accounting standards for
revenue recognition, ASU 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. The amendments are based on the principle
that revenue should be recognized to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company is required
to adopt the amendments in the first quarter of 2018. Early adoption is not permitted. The amendments may be applied
retrospectively to each prior period presented or retrospectively with the cumulative effect recognized as of the date of initial
application. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of these amendments and the transition alternatives on its
consolidated financial statements.
In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-05, Customer’s Accounting of Fees Paid in Cloud Computing
Arrangement, which provides guidance on accounting for fees paid in cloud computing arrangements. If a cloud computing
arrangement includes a software license, then the customer should account for the software license element of the
arrangement consistent with the acquisition of other software licenses. If a cloud computing arrangement does not include a
software license, the customer should account for the arrangement as a services contract. All software licenses recognized
under this guidance will be accounted for consistent with other licenses of intangible assets. The guidance becomes effective
for the Company in the first quarter of 2016. The guidance is not expected to have a material effect on the Company's
Consolidated Financial Statements.
In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-17, Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes. ASU 2015-17
simplifies the presentation of deferred income taxes and requires that deferred tax assets and liabilities, as well as any related
valuation allowance, be classified as noncurrent in a classified statement of financial position. The update becomes effective
for the Company for the first quarter of 2017. The update is not expected to have a material effect on the Company's
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Note 3: Other Balance Sheet Details
Inventories
Inventories, net of reserves, consist of the following at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 (in thousands):
December 31, 2015

Raw material
Work in process
Finished goods

$

5,970
22,058
1,887
29,915

$

December 31, 2014

$

$

5,493
24,299
1,002
30,794

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment consist of the following at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 (in
thousands):
Useful life (In years)

Building (including facility infrastructure)
Machinery and equipment

10-19
3-15

December 31, 2015

$

Accumulated depreciation
$

38,449 $
275,421
313,870
(218,171)
95,699 $

December 31, 2014

27,496
229,409
256,905
(185,378)
71,527

In connection with the periodic review of the estimated remaining useful lives of property and equipment at the
Company’s foundry manufacturing facility, it was determined in the second quarter of 2015, that the estimated useful lives of
machinery and equipment should be extended to 15 years from 7 years and the useful lives of certain facility infrastructure
should be extended from 14 years up to 19 years. The Company extended the estimated useful life of these assets as a result
of the extended use of mature technologies, longer processes and product life cycles, the versatility of manufacturing
equipment to provide better flexibility to meet changes in customer demand and the ability to re-use equipment over several
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technology cycles significantly extending the estimated usage period of such assets. For the year ended December 31, 2015,
the impact of these extended estimated useful lives was approximately $9.5 million of reduced depreciation expenses which
resulted in a net increase of approximately $5.6 million in net profit. The Company believes the current estimates of useful
lives are reasonable, sustainable and better reflect the future anticipated usage of these assets.
Intangible Assets
Intangible assets consist of the following at December 31, 2015 (in thousands):
Weighted
Average Life
(years)

Technology
Patents and other core technology rights
In process research and development
Customer relationships
Trade name
Facilities lease

4;9
9
-15
9
19

Accumulated
Amortization

Cost

$

3,300
15,100
1,800
2,600
5,200
33,500
61,500

$

$
$
Total identifiable intangible assets
Intangible assets consist of the following at December 31, 2014 (in thousands):
Weighted
Average Life
(years)

Technology
Patents and other core technology rights
In process research and development
Customer relationships
Trade name
Facilities lease

4;9
9
-15
9
19

$

Total identifiable intangible assets

3,300
15,100
1,800
2,600
5,200
33,500
61,500

$

$

Accumulated
Amortization

Cost

$

2,865
12,225
1,800
1,263
4,210
19,089
41,452

Net

$

$

2,533
10,547
1,800
1,090
3,632
17,801
37,403

435
2,875
-1,337
990
14,411
20,048

Net

$

$

767
4,553
-1,510
1,568
15,699
24,097

The amortization related to technology, patents and other core technologies rights, and facilities lease is charged to
cost of revenues. The amortization related to customer relationships and trade name is charged to operating expenses.
Note 4: Wells Fargo Asset-Based Revolving Credit Line
In December 2013, the Company entered into an agreement with Wells Fargo Capital Finance, part of Wells Fargo
& Company (“Wells Fargo”), for a five-year secured asset-based revolving credit line in the total amount of up to $70 million
maturing in December 2018 (the “Credit Line Agreement”). The applicable interest on the loans under the Credit Line
Agreement was at a rate equal to, at lender’s option, either the lender’s prime rate plus a margin ranging from 0.50% to 1.0%
or the LIBOR rate plus a margin ranging from 1.75% to 2.25% per annum and starting February 2016, interest is at a rate
equal to, at lender’s option, either the lender’s prime rate plus a margin ranging from 0.25% to 0.75% or the LIBOR rate plus
a margin ranging from 1.5% to 2.0% per annum.
The outstanding borrowing availability varies from time to time based on the levels of the Company's eligible
accounts receivable, eligible equipment, eligible inventories and other terms and conditions described in the Credit Line
Agreement. The obligations under the Credit Line Agreement are secured by security interest on all the assets of the
Company. The Credit Line Agreement contains customary covenants and other terms, as well as customary events of default.
If any event of default will occur, Wells Fargo may declare all borrowings under the facility due immediately and foreclose
on the collateral. Furthermore, an event of default under the Credit Line Agreement would result in an increase in the interest
rate on any amounts outstanding. The Company's obligations pursuant to the Credit Line Agreement are not guaranteed by
Tower.
Borrowing availability under the Credit Line Agreement as of December 31, 2015 was approximately $49 million,
of which approximately $20 million had been utilized as of such date (comprised of approximately $19 million through loans
and approximately $1 million in letters of credit).
As of December 31, 2015, the Company was in compliance with all of the covenants under this facility.
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Note 5: Notes
Introduction
As of December 31, 2015, the Company had $58 million principal amount of notes outstanding due December 2018.
As of December 31, 2014, the Company had approximately $45 million principal amount of notes outstanding
(which were early redeemed in January 2015) and approximately $58 million principal amount of notes outstanding due
December 2018. Description and composition are as follows:
Jazz 2010 Notes redeemed during January 2015
In July 2010, the Company issued notes in the principal amount of approximately $94 million due June 2015 (the
“2010 Notes”). Interest on the 2010 Notes at a rate of 8% per annum was payable semiannually.
As of December 31, 2014, approximately $45 million in principal amount of the 2010 Notes was outstanding. As of
January 8, 2015, the 2010 Notes had been fully redeemed mainly through: (i) an early redemption of approximately $45
million outstanding amount, as permitted by the terms of the indenture governing the 2010 Notes, completed in January
2015; and (ii) the 2014 Exchange Agreement (as defined and discussed below).
As a result, as of January 8, 2015, no outstanding amount is due towards the 2010 Notes.
Jazz 2014 Notes Exchange Agreement
In March 2014, the Company, certain of its domestic subsidiaries and Tower entered into an exchange agreement
(the “2014 Exchange Agreement”) with certain 2010 Notes holders (the “2014 Participating Holders”) according to which
the Company issued new unsecured convertible senior notes due December 2018 (the “2014 Notes”) in exchange for
approximately $45 million in aggregate principal amount of 2010 Notes.
In addition, in March 2014, the Company, Tower and certain of the 2014 Participating Holders (the “Purchasers”)
entered into a purchase agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) pursuant to which the Purchasers purchased $10 million
aggregate principal amount of 2014 Notes for cash consideration.
Holders of the 2014 Notes may submit a conversion request with respect to their 2014 Notes to be settled through
cash or ordinary shares of Tower, in which event the conversion price is set to $10.07 per share, reflecting a 20 percent
premium over the average closing price for Tower’s ordinary shares for the five trading days ending on the day prior to the
signing date of the 2014 Exchange Agreement and Purchase Agreement. Interest on the 2014 Notes at a rate of 8% per
annum is payable semiannually.
The 2014 Notes are unsecured senior obligations of the Company, rank equally with all other existing and future
unsecured senior indebtedness of the Company, and are effectively subordinated to all existing and future secured
indebtedness of the Company, including the Company’s secured Credit Line Agreement with Wells Fargo (see Note 4
above), to the extent of the value of the collateral securing such indebtedness. The 2014 Notes rank senior to all existing and
future subordinated debt. The 2014 Notes are not guaranteed by Tower.
Holders of the 2014 Notes are entitled, subject to certain conditions and restrictions, to require the Company to
repurchase the 2014 Notes at par plus accrued interest and a 1% redemption premium in the event of certain change of
control transactions as set forth in the Indenture governing the 2014 Notes.
The Indenture contains certain customary covenants, including covenants restricting the Company’s ability and the
ability of its subsidiaries to, among other things, incur additional debt, incur additional liens, make specified payments and
make certain asset sales.
Jazz’s obligations under the 2014 Notes are guaranteed by Jazz’s wholly owned domestic subsidiaries. The
Company has not provided condensed consolidated financial information for such subsidiaries because the subsidiaries have
no independent assets or operations, the subsidiary guarantees are full and unconditional and joint and several and the
subsidiaries of the Company, other than the subsidiary guarantors, are minor.
As of December 31, 2015, approximately $58 million principal amount of 2014 Notes was outstanding.
The Credit Line Agreement imposes certain limitations on the ability to repay the notes and/or to incur
additional indebtedness without Wells Fargo’s consent. Any default on payment of the notes or any default on a
permitted refinancing of the notes would trigger a cross default under the Credit Line Agreement, which would permit
the lenders to accelerate the obligations thereunder, potentially requiring the Company to repay or refinance the Credit
Line Agreement.
The Company concluded that the 2014 Exchange Agreement should not be recognized as a troubled debt
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restructuring in accordance with the provisions of ASC 470-60 "Troubled Debt Restructurings by Debtors". In accordance
with the provisions of ASC 470-50 “Modifications and Extinguishments” the Company concluded that the exchange resulted
in an extinguishment of the old debt and the issuance of a new convertible debt to be recorded at fair value. As described
above, certain of the 2014 Notes were issued in exchange for certain of the 2010 Notes. Since the 2014 Notes were not traded
and no quotes were available, the Company determined the fair value of the 2014 Notes using the present value technique.
The 2014 Exchange Agreement resulted in an amount of approximately $9.8 million, which has been recorded in the
statement of operations report as non-cash one-time financing expense for the year ended December 31, 2014. The
convertible feature has been measured as the difference between the fair value of the liability component and the fair value of
the note as a whole, and recorded in equity in accordance with ASC 470-20 “Debt With Conversion and Other Options”.
For disclosure purposes, the fair value of the 2014 Notes as of December 31, 2015 was approximately $90 million.
Such fair value is determined by taking in consideration the market approach, using the last quotations of the notes.
Note 6: Income Taxes
The Company’s effective tax rate differs from the statutory rate as follows (in thousands):
Year ended
December 31, 2015

Tax expenses (benefit) computed at the federal
statutory rate
State tax, net of federal provision (benefit)
Research Credits
Unrecognized tax expense (benefit)
Permanent items & others
Income tax benefit

$

9,073
14
(1,932)
(11,153)
(362)
(4,360)

$

Year ended
December 31, 2014

$

Year ended
December 31, 2013

(6,156)
(577)
(150)
412
146
(6,325)

$

$

(5,643)
262
(186)
298
(77)
(5,346)

$

The Company’s income tax benefit is as follows (in thousands):
Year ended
December 31, 2015

Current tax expense (benefit):
Federal (*)
$
State
Foreign
Total current
Deferred tax benefit:
Federal
State
Total deferred
$
Income tax benefit
(*) Includes changes in unrecognized tax benefit, see below.

(8,563)
16
2
(8,545)
4,185
-4,185
(4,360)

Year ended
December 31, 2014

Year ended
December 31, 2013

$

$

1,889
(2)
3
1,890
(8,215)
-(8,215)
(6,325)

$

(633)
41
12
(580)
(4,766)
-(4,766)
(5,346)

$

The Company establishes a valuation allowance for deferred tax assets, when it is unable to conclude that it is more
likely than not that such deferred tax assets will be realized. In making this determination the Company evaluates both
positive and negative evidence. The state deferred tax assets exceed the reversal of taxable temporary differences. Without
other significant positive evidence, the Company has determined that the state deferred tax assets are not more likely than not
to be realized.
Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities from federal and state income taxes are
as follows (in thousands):
December 31, 2015

Deferred tax assets - current:
Net operating loss carryforwards
Employees benefits and compensation
Debt discount
Accruals, reserves and others
Total deferred tax assets

$
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797
1,609
3,322
5,728

December 31, 2014

$

938
1,452
1,253
3,105
6,748

Valuation allowance
Total current deferred tax assets

$

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) - long-term:
Deferred tax assets
Net operating loss carry forward
Employees benefits and compensation
Other

$

Valuation allowance
Deferred tax asset (liability) - property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Debt discount
Other
Total deferred tax assets (liabilities)
Total deferred taxes

$

(2,086)
3,642

11,325
1,750
120
13,195
(5,538)
7,657
(1,612)
(5,083)
(3,266)
(363)
(2,667)
975

$

$

$

(1,797)
4,951

12,218
2,249
(1)
14,466
(5,223)
9,243
2,137
(6,318)
(4,200)
(557)
305
5,256

The future utilization of the Company’s net operating loss carry forwards to offset future taxable income is subject
to an annual limitation as a result of ownership changes that have occurred. Additional limitations could apply if ownership
changes occur in the future. The Company has had two “change in ownership” events that limit the utilization of net
operating loss carry forwards. The first “change in ownership” event occurred in February 2007 upon our acquisition of Jazz
Semiconductor. The second “change in ownership” event occurred on September 19, 2008, the date of the Company’s
Merger with Tower. The Company concluded that the net operating loss limitation for the change in ownership which
occurred in September 2008 will be an annual utilization of $2.1 million in its tax return. The Company had at December 31,
2015 federal net operating loss carry forwards of approximately $28 million that will begin to expire in 2022 unless
previously utilized.
At December 31, 2015, the Company had state net operating loss carry forwards of approximately $135.5 million.
The state tax loss carry forwards begin to expire in 2015.
At December 31, 2015, the Company had combined federal and state alternative minimum tax credits of $0.9
million. The alternative minimum tax credits do not expire.
A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:
Unrecognized tax benefits
(in thousands)
Balance at January 1, 2015
$
19,413
Reductions for tax positions of current year
(623)
Additions for tax positions of prior years
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Expiration of statute of limitation of prior years
(11,148)
Balance at December 31, 2015
$
8,032

Balance at January 1, 2014
Additions for tax positions of current year
Reductions for tax positions of prior years
Balance at December 31, 2014

Unrecognized tax benefits
(in thousands)
$
19,362
51
-$
19,413

Balance at January 1, 2013
Additions for tax positions of current year
Reductions for tax positions of prior years
Balance at December 31, 2013

Unrecognized tax benefits
(in thousands)
$
19,721
12
(371)
$
19,362
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The Company accounts for its uncertain tax provisions in accordance with ASC 740. The Company’s policy is to
recognize interest and penalties that would be assessed in relation to the settlement value of unrecognized tax benefits as a
component of income tax expense. At December 31, 2015, the Company had unrecognized tax benefits of $8.0 million. The
amount of unrecognized tax benefit that, if recognized and realized, would affect the effective tax rate is $7.9 million as of
December 31, 2015.
The statute of limitations with respect to tax year 2010 expired in March 2015. As a result, the Company recorded a
tax benefit for such year in the amount of approximately $11 million in 2015.
The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to U.S. federal income tax rate of 35% as well as income tax in
multiple state and foreign jurisdictions. With few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal income tax
examinations for 2010 and before, state and local income tax examinations for 2010 and before and foreign income tax
examinations for 2011 and before. However, to the extent allowed by law, the tax authorities may have the right to examine
prior periods where net operating losses were generated and carried forward, and make adjustments up to the amount of the
net operating loss carry forward amount.
Note 7: Employee Benefit Plans
The following information provided recognizes the changes in 2015, 2014 and 2013 periodic expenses and benefit
obligations due to the bargaining agreement effective December 19, 2009 entered into by the Company with its collective
bargaining unit employees.
Postretirement Medical Plan
The components of the net periodic benefit cost and other amounts recognized in other comprehensive income (loss)
for the Company’s postretirement medical plan expense are as follows (in thousands, except percentages):
Year Ended
December 31, 2015

Net periodic benefit cost
Service cost

$

Interest cost
Amortization of prior service costs
Amortization of net (gain) or loss

29
126
(973)
(115)
(933)

Year Ended
December 31, 2014

$

24
118
(1,737)
(227)
(1,822)

$
$
Total net periodic benefit cost
Other changes in plan assets and benefits obligations recognized in other comprehensive income
Prior service cost for the period
$
-$
-Net (gain) or loss for the period
(1,333)
558
Amortization of prior service costs
973
1,737
115
227
Amortization of net gain or (loss)
$
(245)
$
2,522
Total recognized in other comprehensive income
Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost
$
(1,178)
$
700
and other comprehensive income
Weighted average assumptions used:
Discount rate
4.30%
5.20%
Expected return on plan assets
N/A
N/A
Rate of compensation increases
N/A
N/A
Assumed health care cost trend rates:
Health care cost trend rate assumed for current
year (Pre-65/Post-65)
7.00%/20.00%
7.75%/25.00%
Ultimate rate (Pre-65/Post-65)
4.50%/5.00%
5.00%/5.00%
Year the ultimate rate is reached (Pre-65/Post-65)
2025/2022
2022/2022
Measurement date
December 31, 2015
December 31, 2014
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Year Ended
December 31, 2013

$

$
$

32
126
(1,703)
(132)
(1,677)

$

(91)
(668)
1,703
132
1,076

$

(601)
4.30%
N/A
N/A

8.25%/35.00%
5.00%/5.00%
2022/2022
December 31, 2013

Impact of one-percentage point change in assumed health care cost
Increase
Decrease
trend rates as of December 31, 2015:
Effect on service cost and interest cost
$
15
$
(12)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation
$
104
$
(82)
The components of the change in benefit obligation; change in plan assets and funded status for the Company’s
postretirement medical plan are as follows (in thousands):

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of period
Service cost
Interest cost
Benefits paid
Change in plan provisions
Actuarial loss (gain)
Benefit obligation end of period
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period
Employer contribution
Benefits paid
Fair value of plan assets at end of period
Funded status

Year Ended
December 31, 2015

Year Ended
December 31, 2014

$

2,977
29
126
(18)
-(1,333)
1,781

$

-18
(18)
-(1,781)

$

$
$

$
$

$

$
$

Year Ended
December 31, 2013

2,317
24
118
(40)
-558
2,977

$

-40
(40)
-(2,977)

$

$

$
$

2,995
32
126
(77)
(91)
(668)
2,317
-77
(77)
-(2,317)

Current liabilities
(40)
(83)
(89)
(1,741)
(2,894)
(2,228)
Non-current liabilities
$
(1,781)
$
(2,977)
$
(2,317)
Net amount recognized
Weighted average assumptions used:
Discount rate
4.80%
4.30%
5.20%
Rate of compensation increases
N/A
N/A
N/A
Assumed health care cost trend rates:
Health care cost trend rate assumed for next year (Pre 65/Post 65)
6.75%/10.00%
7.00%/20.00%
7.75%/25.00%
Ultimate rate (Pre 65/ Post 65)
4.50%/5.00%
4.50%/5.00%
5.00%/5.00%
Year the ultimate rate is reached (Pre 65/ Post 65)
2025/2022
2025/2022
2022/2022
The following benefit payments are expected to be paid in each of the next five fiscal years and in the aggregate for
the five fiscal years thereafter (in thousands):
Fiscal Year

Other Benefits ($)

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021-2025

$

$

40
54
60
71
78
434

The Company adopted several changes to the postretirement medical plan in 2012 that cumulatively reduced
obligations by approximately $3.9 million. The changes in the plan were implemented through 2015 and included the phase
out of spousal coverage, introduction of an employer-paid cap, and acceleration of increases in retiree contribution rates.
Pension Plan
The Company has a pension plan that provides for monthly pension payments to eligible employees upon
retirement. The pension benefits are based on years of service and specified benefit amounts. The Company uses a December
31 measurement date. The Company’s funding policy is to make contributions that satisfy at least the minimum required
contribution for IRS qualified plans.
The components of the change in benefit obligation, the change in plan assets and funded status for the Company’s
pension plan are as follows (in thousands, except percentages):
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Year Ended
December 31, 2015

Year Ended
December 31, 2014

Year Ended
December 31, 2013

Net periodic benefit cost
Interest cost
$
798 $
796
$
732
Expected return on plan assets
(1,130)
(1,257)
(948)
Amortization of prior service costs
3
3
-31
-97
Amortization of net (gain) or loss
$
(298)
$
(458) $
(119)
Total net periodic benefit cost
Other changes in plan assets and benefits obligations recognized in other comprehensive income
Prior service cost for the period
$
-$
-- $
93
Net (gain) or loss for the period
6
3,117
(4,696)
Amortization of prior service costs
(3)
(3)
-(31)
-(97)
Amortization of net gain or (loss)
$
(28)
$
3,114 $
(4,700)
Total recognized in other comprehensive income
Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost and other
$
(326)
$
2,656 $
(4,819)
comprehensive income
Weighted average assumptions used:
Discount rate
4.20%
5.10%
4.30%
Expected return on plan assets
6.20%
7.50%
7.50%
Rate of compensation increases
N/A
N/A
N/A
Estimated amounts that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income in the next fiscal year:
Prior service cost
3
3
3
Net actuarial (gain) or loss
$
33
$
31 $
-The components of the change in benefit obligation; change in plan assets and funded status for the Company’s
pension plan are as follows (in thousands, except percentages):
Year Ended
December 31, 2015

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of period
Interest cost
Benefits paid
Change in plan provisions
Actuarial loss (gain)
Benefit obligation end of period
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period
Actual return on plan assets
Employer contribution
Benefits paid

$
$

18,134
78
765
(451)

Fair value of plan assets at end of period
Funded status
Accumulated benefit obligation

$
$
$

Non-current assets
Non-current liabilities
Net amount recognized
Weighted average assumptions used
Discount rate

$

$

$

Rate of compensation increases
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19,304
798
(451)
-(1,046)
18,605

Year Ended
December 31, 2014

$

Year Ended
December 31, 2013

15,873
796
(532)
-3,167
19,304

$

$

16,652
1,307
707
(532)

$

12,543
3,857
689
(437)

18,526
(79)
18,605

$
$
$

18,134
(1,170)
19,304

$
$
$

16,652
779
15,873

-(79)
(79)

$

-(1,170)
(1,170)

$

779
-779

$

$

$

$

17,272
732
(437)
93
(1,787)
15,873

4.60%

4.20%

5.10%

N/A

N/A

N/A

The following benefit payments are expected to be paid in each of the next five fiscal years and in the aggregate for
the five fiscal years thereafter (in thousands):
Fiscal Year

Other Benefits

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021-2025

$

650
731
805
866
937
5,446

$

The Plan’s assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis consisted of the following as of December 31, 2015:
Level 1

$
$

Investments in mutual funds
Total plan assets at fair value

Level 2

---

$
$

18,526
18,526

Level 3

$
$

---

The Plan’s assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis consisted of the following as of December 31, 2014:
Level 1

$
$

Investments in mutual funds
Total plan assets at fair value

Level 2

---

$
$

18,134
18,134

Level 3

$
$

---

The Company’s pension plan weighted average asset allocations at December 31, 2015 by asset category are as
follows:
Asset Category:

December 31, 2015

Equity securities
Debt securities
Real estate
Other
Total

62%
38%
0%
0%
100%

Target allocation 2016

60%
40%
0%
0%
100%

The Company’s primary policy goals regarding plan assets are cost-effective diversification of plan assets,
competitive returns on investment, and preservation of capital. Plan assets are currently invested in mutual funds with various
debt and equity investment objectives. The target asset allocation for the plan assets is 40% debt, or fixed income securities,
and 60% equity securities. Individual funds are evaluated periodically based on comparisons to benchmark indices and peer
group funds and investment decisions are made in accordance with the policy goals. Actual allocation to each asset category
fluctuate and may not be within the target specified above due to changes in market conditions.
The estimated expected return on assets of the plan is based on assumptions derived from, among other things, the
historical return on assets of the plan, the current and expected investment allocation of assets held by the plan and the
current and expected future rates of return in the debt and equity markets for investments held by the plan. The obligations
under the plan could differ from the obligation currently recorded if management's estimates are not consistent with actual
investment performance.
Note 8: Stockholders’ Equity
Common Stock
As of December 31, 2015, the Company had 1,000 authorized shares.
The number of outstanding shares of the Company's common stock at December 31, 2015 was 100, all of which are
owned by Tower US Holdings Inc.
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Stock Options
Tower’s 2009 Share Incentive Plan (the "2009 Plan") - In 2009 the Company adopted new share incentive plan to
directors, officers and employees of the Company. The options granted at an exercise price which equals the closing market
price of Tower’s ordinary shares immediately prior to the date of grant, the exercise price will not be lower than the nominal
value of Tower’s ordinary shares, vest over up to a three year period, and are not exercisable beyond seven years from the
grant date. As of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, 90,254 non-qualified options and 123,604 non-qualified
options, respectively, were outstanding under the 2009 Plan. No further grants may be made under this plan.
Tower’s 2013 Share Incentive Plan (the "2013 Plan") - In 2013 the Company adopted new share incentive plan to
directors, officers and employees of the Company. Options to be granted under the plan will bear exercise price which equals
an average of the closing market price of Tower’s ordinary shares in the thirty trading days immediately prior to the date of
grant, the exercise price will not be lower than the nominal value of the Tower’s ordinary shares, vest over up to a three year
period and are not exercisable beyond seven years from the grant date.
Under the 2013 Plan, in 2015 the Company granted 214,400 Restricted Stock Units (“RSU”) to its employees
vesting over up to a three year period. The Company measures compensation expense for the RSUs based on the closing
market price of Tower’s ordinary shares immediately prior to the date of grant expensing it through the applicable vesting
period.
As of December 31, 2015 , 769,859 non-qualified stock options and 212,900 RSU’s were outstanding under the
2013 Plan. As of December 31, 2014, 941,634 options were outstanding under the 2013 Plan. Further grants may be
approved in accordance with the board of directors of the Company’s decision.
Tower’s Old Share Incentive Plan (the "Old Plan")
Pursuant to the merger with Tower in 2008, the Company’s outstanding options immediately prior to the effective
time of the merger, were converted to options to purchase Tower’s ordinary shares on the same terms and conditions as were
applicable to such options under the predecessor Company’s plan with adjusted exercise prices and numbers of shares to
reflect the exchange ratio of the stock. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014 49,696 and 64,585 options respectively were
outstanding under the Old Plan.
As of December 31, 2015, total of 909,809 non-qualified stock options and 212,900 RSU’s were outstanding under
all incentive plans. As of December 31, 2014, total of 1,129,823 non-qualified stock options were outstanding under all plans.
During 2013, the Company awarded 894,634 non-qualified stock options to employees that vest over a three year
period from the date of grant. The weighted average exercise price was $4.48.
During 2014, the Company awarded 125,000 non-qualified stock options to employees that vest over a three year
period from the date of grant. The weighted average exercise price was $10.89.
The Company recorded approximately $1.6 million, $0.7 million and $0.3 million of compensation expenses
relating to options and RSU’s granted to employees, for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
Stock-based compensation expense was recognized in the following line items in the statement of operations (in thousands):
2015

Year Ended December 31,
2014

2013

Component of income before provision for income taxes:
Cost of revenue

$

766

$

743
82
1,591

Research and development, net
Selling, general and administrative
Stock-based compensation expense

$

313

$

334
24
671

$

190

$

120
(49)
261

The following table summarizes stock option award activity:
Number of options
(in thousands)

Outstanding at December 31, 2014
Granted
Exercised

1,130
0
(196)
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Weighted average
exercise price per option

$

6.89
0
4.96

Number of options
(in thousands)

(24)
910
385

Cancelled or expired
Outstanding at December 31, 2015
Options exercisable at December 31, 2015

Weighted average
exercise price per option

$

Weighted average
Fair Value

Number of RSU’s
(in thousands)

Outstanding at December 31, 2014
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited
Outstanding at December 31, 2015
RSU’s exercisable at December 31, 2015

0
214.4
0
(1.5)
212.9
0

Number of options
(in thousands)

Outstanding at December 31, 2013
Granted
Exercised
Cancelled or expired
Outstanding at December 31, 2014
Options exercisable at December 31, 2014

1,124
125
(40)
(79)
1,130
185

Number of options
(in thousands)

Outstanding at December 31, 2012
Granted
Exercised
Cancelled or expired
Outstanding at December 31, 2013
Options exercisable at December 31, 2013

364
895
(19)
(116)
1,124
203

8.21
7.28
9.00

$

$

0
15.15
0
15.15
15.15
0

Weighted average
exercise price per option

$

$

6.30
10.89
4.56
5.98
6.89
14.82

Weighted average exercise
price per option

$

$

15.51
4.48
4.35
21.49
6.30
12.08

The aggregate pretax intrinsic value, weighted average remaining contractual life, and weighted average per share
exercise price of options outstanding and of options exercisable as of December 31, 2015 were as follows:
Options Outstanding:
Range of Exercise Prices

$
$

4.35-12.6
21-28.2

Number of Share options
(In thousands)

823
87
910

Weighted Average Exercise
Price

Weighted Average Remaining
Contractual Life (In years)

$

5.56
23.58

4.77
1.77

$

7.28

4.49

Options Exercisable:
Range of Exercise Prices

$
$

4.35-12.6
21-28.2

Number of Share options
(In thousands)

298
87
385

Weighted Average Exercise
Price

Weighted Average Remaining
Contractual Life (In years)

$

4.77
23.58

4.26
1.77

$

9.00

3.70
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The following table summarizes key data points for exercised options (in thousands):
2015

The intrinsic value of options exercised
Cash received to Tower from the exercise of stock options
The tax benefit realized from stock options exercised
The fair value of options exercised

$

$

Year Ended December 31,
2014

2,080
971
776
492

$

$

209
181
76
250

$

$

2013

31
82
10
124

Note 9: Related Party Transactions
December 31, 2015

Due from related parties (included in the accompanying balance sheets)
Less: Due to related parties (included in the accompanying balance sheets)
Net balance due from (to) related parties

$
$

22,997
(13,986)
9,011

December 31, 2014

$
$

3,828
(4,842)
(1,014)

Related parties’ balances a re with Tower and its subsidiaries and are mainly for purchases from, and payments made
on behalf of, the other party, purchase and sale of tools lease of tools, service charges, business development services,
procurement services and other services. In addition, as described in Note 5 above, the Company issued to its 2014
Participating Holders and Purchasers an aggregate of approximately $58.3 million of Notes, which are convertible into an
aggregate of up to approximately 5.8 million ordinary shares of Tower at a conversion price of $10.07 per share, the value of
which was determined to be approximately $4.50 for each Tower share underlying the 2014 Notes. This value was given by
Tower to the Company and was settled as described in Note 9 to the Company’s consolidated financial statements included in
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014.
Note 10: Segment and Geographic Information
ASC Topic 280 “Segment Reporting”, requires the determination of reportable business segments (i.e., the
management approach). This approach requires that business segment information used by the chief operating decision maker
to assess performance and manage company resources be the source for segment information disclosure. The Company
operates in one business segment: the manufacturing and process design of semiconductor wafers.
Revenues are derived principally from customers located within the United States.
Long-lived assets consisting of property, plant and equipment are primarily located within the United States.
Note 11: Commitments and Contingencies
Leases
Our headquarters and manufacturing facility are located in Newport Beach, California. The Company leases its
fabrication facility and offices under lease contracts that the Company can extend until 2027. In 2015, the Company
exercised its option to extend the lease term from 2017 to 2022, while maintaining the option to extend the lease term at its
sole discretion from 2022 to 2027. Under our amended leases, the Company’s rental payments consist of fixed base rent and
fixed management fees and our pro rata share of certain expenses incurred by the landlord in the ownership of these
buildings, including property taxes, building insurance and common area maintenance. These lease expenses are included in
operating expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. The Company and the landlord further
amended the lease to setting forth certain obligations of the Company and the landlord, including certain noise abatement
actions at the fabrication facility.
Aggregate rental expense under operating leases was approximately $3.0 million, $2.6 million and $2.4 million for
the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
Future minimum payments under non-cancelable building operating leases are approximately $2.8 million for each
of the years 2016 through 2019, approximately $2.4 million for 2020 and approximately $2.9 million thereafter.
Environmental Matters
The Company’s operations are regulated under a number of federal, state and local environmental laws and
regulations, which govern, among other things, the discharge of hazardous materials into the air and water as well as the
handling, storage and disposal of such materials. Compliance with environmental law is a major consideration for all
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semiconductor manufacturers because hazardous materials are used in the manufacturing process. In addition, because the
Company is a generator of hazardous waste, the Company, along with any other person with whom it arranges for the
disposal of such waste, may be subject to potential financial exposure for costs associated with an investigation and
remediation of sites at which it has arranged for the disposal of hazardous waste, if such sites become contaminated. This is
true even if the Company fully complies with applicable environmental laws. In addition, it is possible that in the future, new
or more stringent requirements could be imposed. Management believes it has materially complied with all material
environmental laws and regulations. There have been no material claims asserted nor is management aware of any material
unasserted claims for environmental matters.
Indemnification
The Company has entered into contracts with customers in which the Company provides certain indemnification to
the customer in the event of claims of patent or other intellectual property infringement that arise from the Company's
manufacturing process. The Company has not recorded a liability for potential obligations under these indemnification
provisions and would not record such a liability unless the Company believed that the likelihood of a material obligation was
probable and estimable.
Note 12: Valuation Account
Additions

Dollars in thousands
Balance at the
beginning of
the period

Charged to
costs and
expenses

Deductions

Balance at
the end of
the period

Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable:
Year ended December 31, 2015
Year ended December 31, 2014
Year ended December 31, 2013

$
$
$

-- $
-- $
67 $
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-- $
-- $
(61) $

-- $
-- $
(6) $

----

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
Not applicable.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Based on their evaluation as of the end of the period covered by this report, our principal executive officer and chief
financial officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)
under the Exchange Act) were effective as of the end of the period covered by this report.
Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives,
and our chief executive officer and our chief financial officer have concluded that these controls and procedures are effective
at the “reasonable assurance” level. We believe that a control system, no matter how well designed and operated, cannot
provide absolute assurance that the objectives of the control system are met, and no evaluation of controls can provide
absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within a company have been detected.
Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting. A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles.
There are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any system of internal control, including the possibility of
human error and the circumvention or overriding of controls. Accordingly, even effective internal controls can provide only
reasonable assurances with respect to financial statement preparation. Further, because of changes in conditions, the
effectiveness of internal control may vary over time.
The Company’s management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2015. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations (COSO) of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013). Based on its
assessment using those criteria, management concluded that, as of December 31, 2015, the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting is effective.
Changes in internal controls over financial reporting
There were no changes in our internal controls over financial reporting that occurred during our most recent fiscal
quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting.
Item 9B. Other Information
Not Applicable.
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PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
Omitted pursuant to General Instruction I (1) (a) and (b) of Form 10-K.
Item 11. Executive Compensation
Omitted pursuant to General Instruction I (1) (a) and (b) of Form 10-K.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
Omitted pursuant to General Instruction I (1) (a) and (b) of Form 10-K.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence
Omitted pursuant to General Instruction I (1) (a) and (b) of Form 10-K.
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services
The following presents aggregate fees billed to us by Deloitte, our current principal accountants during the years
ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014. All of the fees described below were pre-approved by our audit
committee.
Audit Fees. Audit fees billed by Brightman Almagor Zohar, a member of Deloitte were $187,000 during the twelve
months ended December 31, 2015 and $212,000 during the twelve months ended December 31, 2014.
Audit-Related Fees. During the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 audit-related fees billed
were $5,136 and $6,846, respectively, in connection with Sarbanes Oxley compliance.
Tax Fees. Tax fees billed were $58,000 during the twelve months ended December 31, 2015, and $81,600 during
the twelve months ended December 31, 2014 and included amounts also in connection with transfer pricing studies.
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